
Sullivan’s Island Town Council
2050-B Middle Street

January 19, 2016
6:00 p.m.

Welcome and Pledge of Allegiance
Invocation

I. Format: 20 minutes for general comments from the floor

II. Council Action Items
1. Approval of Minutes from December 15, 2015 Regular Meeting

2. Second Reading, by Title Only, Ordinance 2015-11, An Ordinance Amending Section 2-27
Administration, of the Ordinances for the Town of Sullivan’s Island.

III. Reports and Communication
1. General and New Correspondence
2. Mayor’s Report
3. Administrator’s Report
4. Attorney’s Report
5. Boards and Commissions Reports

a) Planning Commission
b) Board of Zoning Appeals
c) Design Review Board
d) Tree Commission
e) Municipal Elections Commission
f) Park Foundation

IV. Committee Reports – Discussion Items
1. Finance Committee
2. Land Use & Natural Resources Committee
3. Administration Committee
4. Water & Sewer Committee
5. Public Safety Committee
6. Recreation Committee
7. Public Facilities Committee

V. Adjourn



cember 15, 2015 

The regular meeting of Town Council was held on the above date at 6:00 p.m., all 
requirements of the Freedom of Information Act having been atisfied. 

Present were: Patrick M. O'Neil, Mayor 

Chauncey Clark, Mayor Pro-Tern 
Sarah Church, Councilmember 

Mark Howard, Councilmember 
Rita Langley, Councilmember 
Susan Middaugh, Councilmember 
Bachman Smith, IV, Councilmember 

Mayor O'Neil called the meeting to order and led the P edge of Allegiance, followed by 

the invocation by Councilmember Clark. There were two inei hers in the audience, including 

one member of the media. 

I. FORMAT — Mayor O'Neil opened the floor for comments. 

There was no public comment. 

1 
11. COUNCIL ACTION ITEMS 
1. Approval of Council Minutes — Motion was made by Couincilmember Middaugh, 
seconded by Councilmember Howard, to approve the Novelluber 17, 2015 Regular Meeting 
Minutes, carried unanimously. Motion was made by Councilmember Middaugh, seconded 
by Councilmember Clark, to approve the November 23, 2015 Special Meeting Minutes, 
carried unanimously. Motion was made by Councilmember Middaugh, seconded by 
Councilmember Howard, to approve the November 30, 2015 Special Meeting Minutes, as 

amended, carried unanimously . 

2. Motion was made by Councilmember Howard, seconded by Councilmember Church, to 
have Second Reading and Ratification, Ordinance 2015-10, An Ordinance Amending 
Sections 5-76, 5-77, 5-78, 5-80 and 5-81 of the Town of Ordinances for the Town of 
Sullivan's Island, Regarding Flood Mitigation, carried unanimously. 

3. There was no motion for First Reading, by Title Only, Ordinance No. 2015-07, An 
Ordinance Amending Section 2-27 of the Code of Ordinances for the Town of Sullivan's 
Island, to revise the Process in Which Ordinances are Introd iced; therefore the 
amendment failed. Mayor O'Neil stated that he and Councilmember Howard met with 
Attorney Dodds and will recommend a new version of the amen( ment. 

Town Council - December 15, 2015 	 Page 1 



4. Motion was made by Councilmember Howard, second d by Councilmember Middaugh, 
to have First Reading, by Title Only, Ordinance 2015-11, n Ordinance Amending Section 
2-27 Administration, of the Ordinances for the Town of S llivan's Island. Motion was 
made by Councilmember Smith, seconded by Councilme her Church, to amend the first 
sentence of Paragraph C to read: The second reading of a ordinance shall be at a 
subsequent meeting of Council, and shall be for the purpo e of passing the same to have the 
full force of the law, carried unanimously. Main motion c rried unanimously. 

5. There was no motion for First Reading, by Title Only, Ordinance 2015-09, An 
Ordinance Amending Sections 17-3, 21-108 (C), 21-160(B)1 and 21-173(A) of the Town 
Ordinances for the Town of Sullivan's Island, Regarding erm Limits for Boards and 
Commissions; therefore the amendment failed. 

6. Drainage and Erosion Study - Administrator Benke repo ed that the drainage of the mound 

continues to be reviewed, and two of the four flumes have bee located. 

7. Signage and Landscaping at Entrance to Island - Moti was made by Councilmember 
Middaugh, seconded by Councilmember Howard, to give a volunteer group permission to 
proceed to develop a design at their cost for signage and la dscaping at the Ben Sawyer 
entrance to the Island, and present it to Council for review carried unanimously. 	The 

Town will consult with SCDOT and DI-IEC as needed for appr vals. 

8. Transportation Sales Tax — Councilmember Smith report 
soon to consider some projects for this funding. After discuss' 

Councilmember Clark, seconded by Councilmember Howa 
Administrator to apply for Transportation Sales Tax fund' 
storm water system, carried unanimously. 

the application deadline was too 
n, motion was made by 
d, to instruct the Town 
g to do work on the Station 19 

III. REPORTS AND COMMUNICATIONS 
1. General and New Correspondence — No items to report. 

2. Mayor's Report — No items to report. 

4. Attorney's Report — No items to report. 

5. Boards and Commissions Reports — No reports. 

IV. COMMITTEE REPORTS 
Finance Committee — Mayor O'Neil. Monthly report rendered. Administrator Benke briefly 
reviewed the revenues and expenses from the October 2015 Tina vial report. On the revenue 
side, business license and building permit revenues are very stro g. The business license notices 

Town Council - December 15, 2015 
	

Page 2 



for 2016 were mailed last week. The water and sewer revenu is slightly ahead of budget. On 
the expenditure side, the Town Hall relocation and cost to dat is approximately S395K. 

Administration Committee — Councilmember Howard. Monthly report rendered. 

Water and Sewer Committee — Councilmember Middaugh. onthly reports rendered. 
The Committee will meet on Thursday, January 7, 2016 at 8:3 a.m. at the Water and Sewer 
office. 

Public Safety Committee — Councilmember Clark. Monthly Ieports rendered. The boardwalk 
at Station 22 is being repaired. The Fire and Rescue Christmas Party was a wonderful event. 
Staff is prepared for the Polar Bear Swim on January 1, 2016. 

Recreation Committee — Councilmember Church. No items report. Councilmember 
Middaugh noted that Battery Gadsden Cultural Center is havin an informal Christmas party 
this Thursday for anyone who wants to attend. 

Public Facilities Committee — Councilmember Smith. Monthl report rendered. 
Art Display at New Town Hall — Battery Gadsden Cultural Cen r representatives have 
approached the Town about having dedicated space for a rotatin art display in the new Town 
Hall. This will be discussed further when the walls are framed up. 
Brick Sales — The Brick Campaign for the hardscape at the new own Hall has begun. 
Information is available on the Town website. The 4"x8" engra ed bricks cost $150; the 8"x8" 
engraved bricks cost 5350. 
Vehicular Traffic and Dump Area This is a new topic assigned o Public Facilities Committee 
tonight. It will be discussed at the January Workshop how to bes control vehicular access to the 
dump area. 
Station 26 Boat Landing — This is a new topic assigned to Public acilities Committee tonight. It 
will be discussed at the January Workshop how to improve the b at landing at Station 26. 

Land Use and Natural Resources Committee — Councilmembe Langley. Monthly report 
rendered. No items to report. A meeting will be scheduled in Ja uary to discuss the accreted 
land management plan. 

Motion was made by Councilmember Smith, seconded y Councilmember Howard, 
to go into Executive Session at 6:50 p.m. to receive legal advic — Fee Simple Title for Ward 
B. Lassoe, 2802 Jasper Boulevard, Lot 177 Moultrieville East t nd, Plat Book D, Page 184, 
carried unanimously. 

Town Council - December 15, 2015 
	 Page 3 



Motion was made by Councilmember Smith, secon ed by Councilmember Langley, 
to come out of Executive Session at 7:18 p.m., carried una imously. Mayor O'Neil noted 
that no votes or action were taken during Executive Session. 

Motion was made by Councilmember Clark, secon ed by Councilmember Church, 
to adjourn at 7:18 p.m., carried unanimously. 

Respectfu ly submitted, 

Ellen Mill =r 

Town Council - December 15, 2015 
	

Page 4 



Ordinance 2015-11 

ORDINANCE TO AMEND SECTION 2-27, ADMINISTRATION, OF THE 
ORDINANCES FOR THE TOWN OF SULLIVAN'S ISLAND 

WHEREAS, the Town Council finds that it is in the best interest of the Town to expand 
the procedure for the passage of Ordinances; and, 

WHEREAS, the Town Council further finds that it is in the best interest of the Town to 
provide ample time for consideration and input during the introduction or amendment to 
ordinances by increasing the requirement of two readings to three readings and therefore, Section 
2-27. Administration, of the Town's Ordinances should be amended to effect the same. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND TOWN COUNCIL IN 
MEETING DULY ASSEMBLED, 

That Section 2-27 shall be amended in its entirety to read as fo lows: 

Sec. 2-27. Procedure for Enactment of Town Ordinances  
A. Form and procedures. Only the Mayor, a Council Membe or a Council Committee may 
introduce a proposed ordinance. Every proposed Town ordina cc shall be introduced in writing 
and in the form required for final adoption. (See Section 2-28). All ordinances shall be read 
three times on at least two separate days with at least six days tween two of the readings. All 
ordinances may be read by title only. 

B. First reading. The first reading of a Town ordinance shall b 
Discussions and motions to amend at first reading are permissi 
Council members present. Upon an affirmative vote by the maj 
assembled, the ordinance shall be read. 

for information purposes. 
le if requested by at least two 
rity of Council present and duly 

at a subsequent meeting of 
the full force of the law. 

id shall be made prior to second 
ant and duly assembled, the 

C. Second reading. The second reading of an ordinance shall b 
Council, and shall be for the purpose of passing the same to have  
Discussions and motions to amend arc permissible at this time a 
reading. Upon an affirmative vote of a majority of Council Fes 
ordinance shall be read. 

D. Third reading. The third reading of an ordinance shall be he at the next meeting of 
Council, unless the Council present unanimously votes to have ti e third reading immediately 
following the second reading. Discussions and motions to amen are permissible prior to the 
third reading if requested by at least two Council Members prese t. Upon an affirmative vote for 
third reading by the majority of Council present and duly assem ed, the ordinance shall be read 
for the purpose of passing the same to have the full force of the 1 w. 

E. Ratification. After an ordinance shall have received its third eading, it shall be signed by the 
Mayor, or the Mayor ProTem or the Presiding Officer and atteste to by the Clerk or in his/her 
absence, the Town Administrator, affixed with the seal of the mu icipality of the. Town, and 



placed in the 'Town's Book ofOrdinances by the Clerk. 

This Ordinance shall take effect immediately upon its ratitica 

Patrick M. O'Neil, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

Ellen Miller, Town Clerk 

First Reading: 
Second Reading: 
Ratification: 

ion. 



ADMINISTRATOR'S REPORT TO TOWN COUNCIL 

January 19, 2016 

I. Council Correspondence 

New Correspondence: 

1. Scott Hansen, 2424 Jasper Boulevard, 01-17-16: Coyote incident 
that resulted in an animal fatality. 

2. Danielle White, Email correspondence, 01-17-16: Concern over 
recent coyote incident. 

3. Laura Dargan, President Battery Gadsden Cultural Center Board of 
Directors, 12-16-15: BGCC grant application with SCDAH for 
structure assessment. 

II. Construction Projects 

A. Town Hall and Police Station Building — Hill Construction continues 
with the remainder of the above ground block work and has begun 
wood framing of the second floor. Selections based on the November 
Council discussion have been submitted to the General Contractor. 
The Town processed pay application six from Hill Construction on 01-
13-16 in the amount of $159,774.72. An OAC meeting was held on 
01-19-16 at 10am. 



III. General 

A. The list of Islanders who passed away in 2015 is attached. 

B. The Sullivan's Island Police Department responded to a canine fatality 
on January 17, 2016 which appears to have been caused by a coyote 
attack. 

C. Staff will be using the data provided by Stantec to complete the 2016 
summer parking plan. 

D. Boardwalk repairs necessitated by October flooding at Stations 18, 22 
and 25 have been completed. 

E. The Town previously submitted a grant application to DHEC-OCRM 
for coastal access improvement. The grant amount awarded is 
$12,500. The grant is subject to National Environmental Policy Act 
review by NOAA. Funds are expected to be made available by March 
2016. Staff will combine the DHEC-OCRM grant with the PART 
grant ($3000) and Charleston County Urban Greenbelt grant for 
boardwalk construction at Station 29 Street. 

F. Boardwalk installation at the Sullivan's Island Elementary School 
began on January 18, 2016 with a 10 day construction period. Funding 
is by Charleston County. 

G. The Town Hall Brick Program has been widely advertised and is 
experiencing modest success. 

H. Attorneys Walker and Linton along with the Town Administrator 
attended a mediation with the Attorney Dennis O'Neill for defendant 
Vince Graham on January 15, 2016. Attorneys Linton and O'Neill are 
preparing consent orders for Town Council to review. 

I. A special meeting of Town Council will be held on January 25, 2016 
5pm to 7pm in the Fellowship Hall at Sunrise Presbyterian Church to 
continue work on the Accreted Land Management Plan. 



Andy Benke 

From: 	 Danielle White <daniellewagnerwhite@gmail.com > 

Sent: 	 Sunday, January 17, 2016 6:26 PM 
To: 	 Andy Benke; Dan Howard 

Subject: 	 coyote attack 

I am deeply disturbed by the recent coyote attack on Sullivan's Island. We have several friends who live on 
Sullivans and visit often, but I am now concerned that it is not safe for my small children. I hope that the town 
will take a more aggressive attitude towards aggressive animals! 
Sincerely, 
Danielle White 
843.200.6759 

Danielle White 
Arbonne Independent Consultant 
Executive Regional Vice President 
CID #10580213 
daniellewagnerwhiteagmail.com   
daniellewhite.arbonne.com  

1 



Andy Benke 

From: 	 Scott (HTG) <scott@hansentalentgroup.com> 
Sent 	 Sunday, January 17, 2016 5:47 PM 
To: 	 Andy Benke 
Cc: 	 Dan Howard 
Subject 	 Coyotes 

Gentleman- Our beloved one year old puppy 'Matey' was viciously killed by a pack of coyotes last night. Needless to say, 
our family is completely heart broken and devastated. Our children are particularly confused by event that has taken our 
dear Matey. It's disconcerting that Sullivan's Island has policy of 'co-exist' with these brutal animals that have clearly 
become increasingly aggressive and in this case deadly. The attack on Matey occurred on the border of our property 
which sits next to an empty lot. Is this how we should co-exist with these brutal animals? We have had an incredible 
outpouring of support from our fellow citizens with regard to this tragic event. I'm hopeful Sullivan's Island will take 
immediate action and put a plan into place to eradicate coyotes that are clearly of no value to our beautiful island. We 
will miss a everything about Matey and just hope she didn't loose her wonderful little life in vain. Do something 

Scott Hansen 
President/CEO HTG, LLC 
Mobile: 843.822.2000 

www.hansentalentgroup.com  

1 



Battery Gadsden Cultural Center 
19171'On Avenue 
Sullivan's Island, SC 29482 
843.801.1320 
batterygadsden@gmail.com  
www.batterygadsden.com  

DECEMBER 16, 2015 

Andy Benke 

2050-B Middle Street 
Sullhran's Island, SC 29482 

BATTERY G 	N ceuvittAL CENTER 

Dear Andy, 

Battery Gadsden Cultural Center (BGCC) would like to inform the Town of Sullivan's Island and its council members 
that it is seeking grant funding from the State Historic Preservation Office of the South Carolina Department of 
Archives & History (SCDAH). 

In speaking with the grants supervisor at the SCDAH, I've learned that not only are we eligible but we are also a great 
candidate for receiving funds from the government With your approval, BGCC would hle to begin the application 
process which includes finding a qualified architectural engineer to perform an overall assessment of Battery Gadsden 
to help us determine and identify our priorities. 

These funds are not guaranteed upon application but there is a great chance that we could be awarded monetary 
assistance that would greatly help the improvement and preservation of the structure itself as well as the 
advancement of the cultural center. 

PRESIDENT, BATTERY GADSDEN CULTURAL CENTER BOARD OF DIRECTORS 



Andy Benke 

From: 	 Laura Dargan <Iauramdargan@gmail.com> 
Sent 	 Wednesday, December 16, 2015 9:11 AM 
To: 	 Andy Benke 
Subject 	 Brant Request Memo - BGCC 
Attachments: 	 GrantRequestMemoBGCC.pdf 

Hi Andy, 

I have attached a letter explaining Battery Gadsden Cultural Center's intentions to seek grant funding from the 
government. As we discussed, I would like to include this in the January 4th Town Council meeting agenda. 

Thanks, 

Laura 

1 



Andy Benke 

From: 	 Laura Dargan <lauramdargan@gmail.com> 
Sent 	 Monday, January 04, 2016 9:01 AM 
To: 	 Susan Middaugh 
Cc 	 Andy Benke 
Subject 	 Battery Gadsden Cultural Center - Historic Preservation Grant 
Attachments: 	 GrantRequestMemoBGCC.pdf; sample DRAFT A-E RFQ.docx; Historic Preservation Grant 

Application Approval.pdf 

Hi Susan and Andy! 

I hope you had a great holiday and New Year! 

I wanted to touch base about the Council Meeting tonight. Will you be discussing approval for our grant 
request? I was not planning on coming tonight but I wanted to make sure that you had all the necessary 
information. 

Susan, on behalf of our board, will you make sure the attached information is available if there are any 
questions at the meeting? 

I've also attached a sample qualification request form. 

For the sake of time and efficiency, as I know there are many other items you need to discuss, having Susan as 
our spokesperson might be more effective but I am happy to come to the meeting if necessary. 

Thanks, 

Laura 
843.801.1320 

1 



Organization Name and Contact Info 

—DRAFT— REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS 

I. INVITATION 

The (organization) invites interested architects, structural engineers (or team of 
design professionals including one or both) to be considered for a historic 
preservation planning project for the (historic property) located in City, South 
Carolina. [Insert contact name] will receive qualifications at ADDRESS, 
Charleston, SC 29ZIP, until 12:00 PM on Friday, MONTH XX, 2012. Questions 
should be directed to [contact] at (843) (or @email.com)..  

II. PROJECT PURPOSE 

The (historic property) is located at (location). Brief statement of history and 
existing conditions. 

(Organization) seeks the services of a professional or design team experienced 
in historic preservation to assess the existing conditions of the Bennett Rice Mill 
Façade and its steel support system. The selected professional or design team 
will produce a long-term plan to stabilize the masonry structure and its steel 
support system, including bid-ready plans and specifications for the proposed 
stabilization repairs. 

The project is funded, in part, by a Historic, Preservation Fund grant from the US 
Department of the Interior, National. Park Service, administered by the SC 
Department of Archives and History (SCDAH). SCDAH must review and 
approve alt-proposed stabilization plans. 

III. SCOPE OF WORK 

The objective of this project is to produce a stabilization plan for the (historic 
property) that assesses the level of material deterioration of the historic structure 
and includes detailed plans and specifications for their long-term stabilization. 
The plan will: (1) document and assess the existing conditions using 
photographs and written descriptions, (2) include bid-ready plans and 
specifications for needed repairs, and (3) include detailed cost estimates for the 
proposed repairs. 

IV. STATEMENT OF QUALIFICATIONS 

Interested professionals or design teams shall provide the following information: 



1) Brief statement of professional history including number of years of 
experience with projects related to historic preservation. 

2) A minimum of three (3) examples of similar projects conducted by the 
professional or design team with a brief description. 

3) Resumes of key personnel. 
4) Statement of compliance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, Section 

504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, and the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, 
as amended, prohibiting discrimination on the basis of race, color, national 
origin, disability or age in federally assisted programs. 

5) Statement of compliance with the Debarment Certification, 43 CFR, Part 12, 
Section 12.510 and state that neither it nor its principals is presently 
debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or 
voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any Federal 
department or agency. 

V. EVALUATION CRITERIA 

Qualifications submitted for this Request will be evaluated for relevant 
experience and professional qualifications. 

The selected firm or design team will provide documentation of the most relevant 
professional experience on historic preservation projects involving historic 
masonry structures similar to the (historic property). 

The selected firm or design team will also provide documentation that its design 
professional(s) has/have professional qualifications that meet, or are comparable 
with, the Secretary of the Interior's Standards for Historic Architecture (as 
published in Code of Federal Regulations, 36 CFR 61). These Standards 
require: 

A professional degree in architecture, or a State license to practice architecture, 
oiS One of the following: 

1) At least one year of graduate study in architectural preservation, American 
architectural history, preservation planning, or closely related field; or 
2) At least one year of full-time professional experience on historic preservation 
projects. 

Such graduate study or experience shall include detailed investigations of historic 
structures, preparation of historic structures reports, and preparation of plans and 
specifications for preservation projects. 

VI. ANTICIPATED PROJECT SCHEDULE (subject to change) 

MONTH, 2012 	Architect selection process completed. 



MONTH, 2012 

September 30, 2012 

Draft report completed and submitted to organization 
and SCDAH for review and comment not later than 
this date. 
Final report submitted to organization and SCDAH not 
later than this date. 



BATTERY G+IPECTI.E. CENTER 

Historic Preservation Grant Application Approval 

Important Information to Know 

Sullivan's Island Town Council Meeting 

January 4, 2016 

Battery Gadsden Cultural Center (BGCC) is a non-profit organization, a National Register, and part of a 
Certified Local Government which makes it a strong candidate for a Federal Historic Preservation Grant. 
I believe that BGCC along with the community and the Town of Sullivan's Island all have great interest in 
restoring this historic structure in order to begin providing a well maintained community center for the 
arts. Below are important points to consider. 

■ Application is due on February 5th, 2016. 
■ Applications must include "bid-ready" plans and specifications prepared by an appropriate 

design official.* 
■ Priorities must be identified in order of greatest need to least. That will help determine the 

budget that will be submitted for review. Each cost item should be justified. 
■ This grant program requires a 50% match from the grantee. For example, if the total project cost 

is $10,000, the grantee can request grant funds of up to $5,000. The grantee would provide the 
other $5,000 (matching share). The matching share must be a cash match.** 

■ Grantee will initially pay for 100% of the project costs. Grant funds are paid to the recipient as 
reimbursement. 

■ Applicants selected for funding should expect their projects to begin after July 1, 2016 (unless 
otherwise noted) and must be completed by September 30, 2016. 

*There is a qualifications request form that is required when considering design officials. They must be 
qualified and/or experienced in working with historical structures. 

**BGCC is planning on raising funds as well to help with any project costs. 

If there are any other questions, please contact me at 843-801-1320. I am happy to discuss the 
application process in greater detail if necessary. 

Thank you for your time. 

Laura Dargan 
President, Battery Gadsden Cultural Center Board of Directors 
843.801.1320 
lauramdargan@gmail.com  



Andy Benke 

From: 	 Andy Benke 

Sent: 	 Monday, December 14, 2015 5:53 PM 
To: 	 'Laura Dargan' 
Subject: 	 RE: Historic Preservation Grant - BGCC 

Laura, 

I have time Tuesday afternoon between 2 and 3pm; Wednesday after 1pm; Thursday and Friday just about anytime. 

Can you suggest a time which might work for you? 

AB 

Andy Benke 
Town Administrator 
Town of Sullivan's Island 
Post Office Box 427 
Sullivan's Island, SC 29482 
Direct Telephone: 843-883-5726 
Mobile Telephone: 843-568-8740 
Facsimile: 843-883-3009 
Emergency: 9-1-1 
Police and Fire Dispatcher: 843-743-7200 
Email address: abenkeesullivansisland-sc.com  
Web address: www.sullivansisland-sc.com   

Think Green -  please don't print this e-mail unless needed. 

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This transmission is intended only for the use of the individual or entity to which it is 
addressed and may contain information which is privileged and confidential. If the reader of this message is not the intended 
recipient, you are hereby notified that any disclosure, distribution, or coping of this information is strictly prohibited. If you 
have received this transmission in error, please notify the sender by calling (843) 883-5726. 

From: Laura Dargan [mailtodauramdargan@gmail.comj 

Sent: Monday, December 14, 2015 1:36 PM 

To: Andy Benke <abenke@sullivansisland-sc.com> 

Subject: Re: Historic Preservation Grant - BGCC 

Hi Andy! 

I talked with Brad and he thinks that we arc a ureat candidate for a grant. He also mentioned that the Town of 
Sullivans Island would have to be the applicant and BGCC would be the 3rd party recipient because we are 
leasing from you. He went into some more details about that and i was thinking we could meet at some point 
soon if we decide to take this on. Here are few other points Brad and I went over: 



-- We would want to identify the priorities - bathroom facilities. water damage, air quality, etc... and then have 
an architectural enaineer come in and perform an assessment of the building and then also provide bid ready 
plans for the high priority items 

-- If we are offered the grant. we (BGCC or the Town) would have to provide 100% of the costs up front and we 
would get reimbursed. 

-- Application is due by February 5th 

If you think this is worth discussing. let's meet to talk about the details. I am willing to do all of the application 
work - with you proofing before submission of course. 

Thanks! 

Laura 

On Mon. Dec 14, 2015 at 11:05 AM. Andy Benke <abenkekijsulliN.ftansisland-sc.com> wrote: 

Good morning Laura, 

That may be a great opportunity to fund improvements. When you are speaking with SC Archives & History be sure to 
mention that Battery Gadsden has a National Register designation. Additionally you would want to discuss you groups 
tax status. After a quick read of the application it appears BGCC would be an eligible recipient. However, may also want 
to explain to him the lease arrangement, purpose/intent of BGCC etc. to confirm if you are eligible or the Town would 

be a better applicant. 

Regards, 

Andy 

Andy Benke 

Town Administrator 

Town of Sullivan's Island 

Post Office Box 427 

Sullivan's Island, SC 29482 

Direct Telephone: 843-883-5726 

Mobile Telephone: 843-568-8740  

Facsimile: 843-883-3009  

Emergency: 9-1-1 

Police and Fire Dispatcher: 843-743-7200 

2 



DECEASED ISLANDERS 2015 

I. Lawrence Logan Dodds, January 7, 2015 
2. Lucas Bennett Cavanaugh, January 18, 2015 
3. Joy Truesdale (former resident and employee) February 21, 2015 
4. John Hiers Kizer, March 21, 2015 
5. June Smith Schirmer (former resident) April 1, 2015 
6. Raymond Stokes Soubeyroux (former resident) April 12, 2015 
7. Rovena Jones Hazel, April 28, 2015 
8. Arthur I. Sarnoff, May 20, 2015 
9. Lt. Col. William "Bill" David Booth, USMCR (Ret.), May 23, 2015 
10. Nicholas "Nick" Varney Murphy, July 25, 2015 
11. Edward Theodore Grisillo, August 25, 2015 
12.Harold Wade (summer resident), September 01, 2015 
13.Wilbur Frank "Butch" Benton, September 13, 20 
14. Hugo E. Tezza, November 12, 2015 
15. Helen C. Spell, November 12, 2015 
16.William "Red" J. Wood, Jr., November 30, 2015 
17. Della McGoldrick Zeigler (former resident), December 15, 2015 



MCALISTER-SMITH 

Visit our guestbook at • 
www.kgacy.comlobituariesl 

charleston 

Della M. Zeigler 
MT. PLEASANT — It is with 

sadness and joy that we inform 
you of the passing of Mrs. Della 
M. Zeigler. "Ms. Della", as she 
was known to family and friends, 
left us to be with the The Lord, 
Tuesday. December 15, 2015 
from her temporary home at 
Sweetgrass Memory Care in Mt. 
Pleasant, SC. 

She passed away peacefully 
at the age of 84, after enduring 
Alzheimer's, and more recently, 
stomach cancer. Ms. Della was 
born on Wednesday, May 13, 
1931 to the late Mary Ruth Mci  
GOInCk Cox and Frank Lest Cox. 
She fffa11V 

With Alld ILIBMOrie8  
e , and graduated 

1  from Bishop England Higfi.  

t 

I 

School. She was baptized and 
attended Stella Maria Church on 
Sullivan's Island until moving to 
the Old Village of Mt. Pleasant, 
where she continued her faithful 
relationship with our Lord at 
Christ Our King Church. 

Along with her faithful pres-
ence at Christ Our King Church, 
she was best known in her role 
at Pitt Street Pharmacy in the 
Old Village of Mt. Pleasant, 
where she "held court" for nearly 
60 years. She was predeceased 
by her first husband, Robert Ed-
ward Corker, and her second 
husband, Dr. Washington "Wat-
tie" Zeigler, pharmacist and 
owner of Pitt Street Pharmacy, 
which he established in late 
1937. After Dr. Zeigler's death in 
1982, Ms. Della continued run-
ning the Pitt Street Pharmacy 
with the help of Dr. Zeigler's 
faithful pharmacist friends, 
Gene Whitley and Lavern 
James. Perhaps because she had 
no children of her own, the drug-
store became her baby, and she, 
Gene and Lavern continued the 
tradition of excellence that Dr. 
Zeigler had created. When Phar-
macists Gene and Lavern de-
cided it was time to retire, the 
first call was to fellow pharma-
cist and current owner, Kim 
Richardson, who purchased the 
pharmacy from them in 1996. 
Ms. Della continued working 
with Kim, introducing him to all 
the pharmacy patients and cus-
tomers and teaching him many 
of life's lessons until 2014, when 
her Alzheimer's began to change 
her life. 

Ms. Della's time away from 
the pharmacy was very private 
and independent. However, she 
took great joy in helping her 
nextdoor-neighbor and dear 
friend, Rosa Lee "Dodo" Donald-
son until the time of her passing. 
She also loved her dogs, "Honey" 
and "Buttons" who were her con-
stant companions until her later 
years when she out-lived them 
both. She also enjoyed doing 
yard work and refused help cut-
ting her own grass into her late 
70's. 

She is survived by a brother-
in-law, James  Johnston of Mt. 
Pleasant, and his children, 
James "Jiraho" Johnston, Jr., 
Linda Marie Jacobs (her hus-
band, Leo and their son, 
Stephen), and Laura Annette 
Windham (her husband, Mark 
and their girls, Krystle and 
Shannon Windham), all from 
Charleston. She is also survived 
by Dr. Zeigler's niece, and dear 
friend, Patsy Skinner of 
Charleston, along with many 
friends whose lives she touched 
in so many special ways. Kim 
and Katie Richardson and their 
sons, Will and Townes, were 
among those blessed to have 
known this remarkable, loving 
lady, and would like to thank her 
caregivers at Sweetgrass Mem-
ory Court and Beacon Hospice 
for their excellent care on Ms. 
Della's behalf. 

A Maas of Christian Burial 
will be held at Christ Our King 
Catholic Church on Monday, De-
cember 21, 2015 at 10:30am with 
burial to follow in Magnolia 
Cemetery. 

In lieu of flowers, memorial 
donations may be made to Christ 
Our King Catholic Church, 1149 
Russell Drive, Mt. Pleasant, SC 
29464 and Pet Helpers, 1447 
Folly Road, Charleston, SC 
29412. 

Expressions of sympathy 
may be viewed or submitted on-
line at www.McAlister-
Smith.com. 

Arrangements have been en-
trusted to McALISTER-SMITH 
FUNERAL HOME, MT PLEAS-
ANT CHAPEL, 1520 RIFLE 
RANGE ROAD, MT PLEAS-
ANT, SC (843) 884-3833. 



A_ 
MCALISTER-SMITH 

Visit our guestbooll at 
wutaegacy.cornlobituaries1 

charleston 

Thesday, December I, 2015: B5 

children, Caroline SpruiRWood, 
Robert Scott Gabay Jr., Julie 
Marie Gabay, Gregory Paul Dyer, 
Monica Dyer Nilsen, Megan 
Marie Dyer, Katrina Detyens 
Watson, Catherine Lynn De- 
tyens, George Avinger Detyens, 
Jr., John William Wood, Helen 
Adeline 	Shuman, 	Stella 
McGuire Shuman, Harold Smith 
Shuman, Jr.; Twelve Great- 
Grandchildren; Jeffrey John 
Flood, Olivia Rose Gabay, Ella 
Natalie Gabay, Grace Monica 
Gabay, Silas Robert Crapps, Ade-
line Scott Crapps, Rylan Wood 
Dyer, Reese Ellen Dyer, Hannah 
McGuire Nilsen, Madelyn 
Josephine Nilsen, Marie Lynn 
Watson, Clare McGuire Watson; 
Sister, Mary Wood Meynardie, of 
Summerville, SC; two loving 
nieces, Diane Scoffield and 
Mar 'e Cabel; and many loving 
family and friends. 

He was predeceased by his 
parents and his loving wife of 62 
years, Monica McGuire Wood, of 
Sullivan's Island, SC. 

The family will receive 
friends on Tuesday, December 1, 
2015 from 5:00 PM to 7:00 PM at 
McAlister-Smith Funeral Home, 
1520 Rifle Range Road, Mt. 
Pleasant, SC 29464. Rosary to 
begin at 6:00 PM. 

A Rite of Christian Burial 
will be held at Stella Maris 
Roman Catholic Church, 1204 
Middle St., Sullivan's Island, SC 
29482, on Wednesday, December 
2, 2015 at 10:00 AM with Msgr. 
Lawrence B Mclnerny officiat-
ing. Burial will follow in the St. 
Lawrence Cemetery. 

In lieu of flowers Memorial 
donations may be made in his 
honor to Sullivan's Island Volun-
teer Fire Department, 2050 Mid-
dle St, Sullivan's Island, SC 
29482. 

Expressions of sympathy 
may be viewed or submitted on- 
line 	at 	www.MeAlister- 
Smith.com. 

Arrangements have been en-
trusted to McALISTER-SMITH 
FUNERAL HOME, MT PLEAS-
ANT CHAPEL, 1520 RIFLE 
RANGE ROAD, MT PLEAS-
ANT, SC (843) 884-3833. 

William 
"Red" J. Wood, Jr. 

SULLIVAN'S ISLAND —
William "Red" J. Wood Jr., 92, of 
Sullivan's Island, SC died on 
Monday, November 30, 2015. 

William was horn on Tues-
day, February 20, 1923 in 

Charleston, SC to 
the late Mrs. Dora 
Wood and the late 
Mr. William J. Wood 
Sr. 

Red was a member of Stella 
Marts Roman Catholic Church, 
and he served his country as a 
US Navy Seabee in the South 
Pacific. He received a Congres-
sional Record and The Order of 
the Silver Crescent for his com-
munity service as a five term 
Council Member, a Boy Scout 
Leader, a founder of the Sulli-
van's Island Volunteer Fire De-
partment, The Island Club, and 
Little League Coach. Red was 
compassionate about serving his 
community and church. He had 
a positive impact on everyone he 
met and made them smile. His 
family remembers him as a lov-
ing husband, father, grandfather, 
great grandfather and "The Sul-
livan's Island Legend." 

He is survived by six chil-
dren; Son, William J. Wood, Jr. 
(Elizabeth E. Wood) of Sullivan's 
Island, SC; Daughter, Mary 
Wood Gabay (Robert S. Gabay) of 
Mt. Pleasant, SC; Daughter, 
Joan Wood Dyer, of Mt. Pleasant, 
SC; Daughter, Lynn Wood De- 
tyens (George Avinger Detyens) 
of Sullivan's Island, SC; Son, 
John Mansfield Wood (Nancy 
Breton Wood) of Hollywood, SC; 
Daughter, Emma Wood Shuman 
(Harold Smith Shuman) of Mt. 
Pleasant, SC; Thirteen Grand- 

WOOD, William J. Jr., 92, of 
Sullivan's Island, a Navy vet-
eran, engineer and widower 
of Monica McGuire Wood, 
died Monday. Arrangements 
by McAlister-Smith's Mount 
Pleasant Chapel. 



It 	 Hugo Tezza 	. 
StIWVANS ISLAND — Hugo 

n 	Ernest Tezza entered into eter- 
nal rest at his home on Sulli- 
van's Island on November 12, 

_ 2015. He is survived by his fa-
ther, Joseph Maxwell Tezza, Sr. 
(Charleen), a brother, Joseph M. 
Tezza, II, a sister, Therese (Terri) 
M. Tezza and a son, Luke An-
drews-Tezza. 

Hugo • was born in 
Charleston, South Carolina on 
November 23, 1961. He was the 
son of Joseph Maxwell Tezza, Sr. 
and the late Shirley Marie Bar- 
ley Tezza. He grew up on Sulli-
van's Island and attended Stella 
Maris School and Bishop Eng-
land High School. He was a self-
employed contractor and the sole 
owner of Hugo Tezza, LLC. 

Hugo grew up working in the 
family business, H. Tezza, Inc., 
which was started by his grand- 
father, Hugo, in 1929. It was 
there, learning from his father 
and uncles, that he developed 
and discovered an extraordinary 
talent and artistry in laying 
stone and setting tile. He later 
went into business for himself 
and was sought out for his abil- 
ity to deliver high quality work 
with an emphasis on detail and 
design. He always stood out on 
any job site as he would be the 
only one wearing flip-flops! 

Hugo, from an early age, had 
an affinity for "creek life" and 
was always ready to go fishing, 
shrimping or crabbing. He 
would accompany his father on 
countless fishing, and especially 
shrimping, trips, and was most 
always able to bring home a good 
catch, given that he had the pa- 
tience and knack for targeting 
specific species. As he got older, 
he and his friends enjoyed in- 
shore fishing, but he most loved 
the sport of offshore fishing with 
some of his best friends aboard 
HIGH RETURN as they sought 
out dolphin and the favored 
'blackfieh. 

Throughout the years, Hugo 
loved planting a vegetable gar-
den and his first attempt showed 
that he had a green thumb. As 
work began to take up much of 
his time, he had a container gar-
den at his shop, producing a 
bumper crop of tomatoes and 
peppers that he always shared 
with his friends. Hugo was gen-
erous to a fault and this was fur-
ther demonstrated in his 
kindness and caring concern to-
ward animals. He befriended all 
those he met, and he always had 
pets, mostly taking in those who 
were strays and seeking out 
homeless Pets. 

A highlight of Hugo's life was 
when his son, Luke, was born. 
He would enjoy watching Luke 
play for hours and he derived 
great pleasure enjoying and join-
ing in many of the activities. 

Hugo had many talents and 
interests, was tenacious in ap-
plying his sense of right and 
wrong and he loved his family 
and friends. He will be greatly 
missed. 

In addition to his immediate 
family, Hugo is survived by his 
aunts: Elizabeth (Betty) Carpen-
ter of Tulsa, OK, Jane Tezza,  Vir-
ginia Tezza, and Marilyn Tezza 
of Charleston, and Elizabeth 
(Betsy) Tezza of Sullivan's Is-
land; uncles: Peter Tezza (Pets) of 
Marietta, GA and Bill Barley 
(Marie) of Mt. Pleasant, a niece, 
Haley Rogers (Larry) of Sil-
verdale, WA and a nephew, Max 
Tezza of Mt. Pleasant and nu-
merous cousins and extended 
family. He also leaves behind his 
beloved pets, Miss Kitty and 
Spooky. 

There will be a Mass of Chris-
tian Burial at Stella Maris 
Catholic Church on Sullivan's Is- 



Helen Caldwell Spell - Novembia 12. 2015 - Obituary - Tributes.com 	 Page 1 of 2 

Helen Caldwell Spell 

Born: April 3. 1990 
Died: November 12. 2015 
Location: Sullivans Island. South Carolina 

.1. Henry Stuhr Downtown Chapel 

232 Calhoun Street 
Charleston. SC 29401 
Tel. (843) 723.2524 

Tribute & Message From The Family 

Message From The Family 
Thank you for your support during this difficult time. Please enhance this 
tribute to Helen C. Spell by adding your memories and photos. 

Helen Caldwell Spell died at home on November 12, 
2015. Helen was born in Charlotte, NC on April 3, 
1990. Helen is the daughter of David and Barbara 
Spell and the sister of Celia Smoak Spell. 

Helen touched many hearts over the years with her 
ever joyful spirit and delightful and unique 
perspective on life. She especially loved spending 
time with her family, and she loved going to the beach 

and going to school. Her family would like to thank the many dedicated teachers Helen 
had over the years and also the physicians and staff at MUSC for the excellent and 
compassionate care provided to Helen. They also thank everyone at First (Scots) 
Presbyterian Church who reached out to Helen and made her feel so welcome there. 
She dearly loved her church and had an unshakable faith. Special thanks go out to 
Helen's devoted friend and mentor Kimberly Satriale. 

A memorial service will be held for Helen at 3:00 p.m. on Sunday, November 15th at 
First (Scots) Presbyterian Church in Charleston, with a reception at the church after the 
service. A private burial will precede the service. The family will receive friends at 
their home on Sullivan's Island. Arrangements by J. HENRY STUHR INC., 
DOWNTOWN CHAPEL. 

Helen is survived by her uncles Sims Propst (Anne) of Greenville, SC and Warren 
Propst (Donna) of Columbia, SC, and many cousins that she enjoyed immensely. She 

http://jhenrystuhr.tributes.com/obituary/print_selections/103009460?type=1 	 11/17/2015 



Helen Caldwell Spell - Novella 12. 2015 - Obituary - Tributes.com 	 Page 2 of 2 

was predeceased by her grandparents D.T. and Barbara Spell of Denmark, SC, and 
Charles and Helen Propst of Sumter, SC. 

In lieu of flowers, memorial contributions can be made to First (Scots) Presbyterian 
Church, 53 Meeting Street Charleston, SC 29401 or to the Medical University of South 
Carolina Office of Development. 268 Calhoun Street, MSC 182, Charleston, SC 29425. 

tributes 

http://jhenrystuhr.tributes.com/obituary/print_selections/1  0300 94 60?type= 1 	 11/17/2015 



Wilbur Frank 
"Butch" Benton 

SUWVAWS ISLAND —
Wilbur Frank "Butch" Benton, 
73, of Sullivan's Island, South 
Carolina, husband of Edith 
Spencer Benton died Sunday, 
September 13, 2011 His funeral 
service and burial will be held in 
Columbus, Georgia: A visitation 
will be held at the residence.on 
Tuesday, Septeriber 16, 2015 
from 4:00 p.m. until *6:00 

Maeme. hy. J. HENRYM 
INC.' 	DOWNTOWN 

CHAPEL 
Butch was boor November 

24,1941 in Cola 	Georgia, 
son of Wilbur Clarence Benton 
and Hortense Stuart Benton. He 
was a,graduatit of Auburn Uni-
versity' and! served in the US 
Army. 	ectfrom Columbus 
Bank and Trust in 1996 as a 
Senior Vice.President. 

He is survived by his wife, 
Edith. of Sullivan's Island; son, 
Richard Spencer Benton (Tracy) 
ofAustin,10C; daughter, Kathryn 
Benton Smith (Bachman, IV) of 
Sullivan's Island, SC; sister, 
Paula Benton Bissell of Colum-
bus, GA; brother, David 'Stuart 
Benton of Lake Norman, NC; 
and five grandchildren, Clayson 
Smith, Celia Smith; Bachman 
Smith V, Elizabeth Benton, and 
Tatum Mason. 	. 

In lieu of flowers, memorials 
may be made to the American 
Cancer Society, 5900 Core Road, 
Suite 504, North Charleston, SC 
29406. 

A memorial message may be 
sent to the family by visiting our 
website 	 at 
www,grenrystuhr.com. 

Visit our guestbook at 
saunakgacyccomlobituaried 

charlatan 



Harold Wade 
CHARLESTON — Harold 

Wade, 89, of Charleston, South 
Carolina, husband of Jean Wade 
entered into eternal rest Tues-
day, September 1, 2015. His Fu-
neral Service will be held Friday; 
September 4, 2015 in Grace 
Episcopal Church, 98 Wentworth 
Street at 11:00 p.m. Entomb-
ment, Grace Church Columbar-
ium. Arrangements by J. 
HENRY STUHR, INC. DOWN-
TOWN CHAPEL. 

Harold was born June 6, 1926 
in Liverpool, England, son of 
Harold Francis Wade and Eva 
Balentyne Wade. He graduated 
from Cornell University with a 
Horticultural Degree and a Mas-
ter's Degree in Regional and City 
Planning. He was the owner of 
Carolina Landscape Service 
from 1961 until his retirement in 
1995. 

Harold was the president of 
his Outing Club at Cornell and ' 
enjoyed hiking, canoeing and • 

Thursday, September 3, 2015: 05 

camping in the Adirondack 
Mountains of upper New York. 
He was an avid skier and vaca-
tioned with his family at many of 
the ski resorts in the western 
states and in Europe. Harold en-
oyed fishing and crabbing in the 
low country and particularly en-
joyed his summers at the beach 
on Sullivan's Island. 

Harold was a member of 
Grace Episcopal Church where 
he served on the vestry and sang 
in the choir. He was a long time 
member of the Sertoma Club of 
Charleston, a Master Gardener 
with Clemson Extension, and 
past member of the Executive 
Association 	of 	Greater 
Charleston. 

Harold's quick wit, jovial na-
ture and great kindness will be 
missed by all who knew and 
loved him. 

He is survived by his wife 
Jean Stone Wade to whom he 
was married for 63 years, his son 
Derek Wade (Kathlyn) of 
Charleston, SC; two daughters, 
Leslie Jean Wade of Atlanta, GA 
and Evelyn Wade Helfrick (John) 
of .Mendham, NJ; one grand-
daughter, Aubrey Lee Wade; five 
grandsons, Mason Wade, Derek 
Terry, Stephen Terry, Graham 
Helfrick, and Evan Helfrick. 

Memorials may be made to 
the Flower Guild or the Music 
Ministry at Grace Episcopal 
Church, 98 Wentworth Street, 
Charleston, SC 29401. 

A memorial message may be 
sent to the family by visiting our 
website 	 at 
w,,x,w.jhenrystuhr.com. 

Visit our guestbook at 
uninalegoey.cotrilobituaries1 

charleston 



Mclnemy officiating. Burial will 
follow in the Mount Pleasant 
Memorial Gardens Cemetery. 
The reception will be held imme-
diately after at McAlister-Smith 
Funeral Home, Mt. Pleasant 
Chapel. 

Memorial donations may be 
made in his honor to Hospice 
Center of Charleston, 676 Wanda 
Drive, Mt. Pleasant, SC 29464, 
Stella Maris Roman Catholic 
Church, 1204 Middle St, Sulli-
van's Island, SC 29482, and 
Bishop England High School, 
363 Seven Farms Drive, Daniel 
Island, SC 29492. 

Expressions of sympathy 
may be viewed or submitted on- 
line 	at 	www.McAlister- 
Smith.com. 

Arrangements have been en-
trusted to McALISTER-SMITH 
FUNERAL HOME, MT PLEAS-
ANT CHAPEL, 1520 RIFLE 
RANGE ROAD, MT PLEAS-
ANT, SC (843) 884-3833. 

McA LISTER-SMITI I 

Visit our guestbook at 
uota.legacy.comlobituaries1 

Edward Theodore Grisillo 
SULLIVAN'S ISLAND - Ed-

ward Theodore Grisillo, 99, of 
Sullivan's Island, SC died on 
Tuesday, August 25, 2015. 

He was born on Tuesday, 
June 20, 1916 in Charleston, SC 
to the late Mabel Johansen and 
the late Joseph William Grisillo. 

Edward was the son of the 
lighthouse keeper and had many 
adventures at North Island, 
Georgetown, SC. He started in 
the Lightship Service prior to 
the establishment of the U.S. 
Coast Guard. He went on to 
serve on Coast Guard ships in 
Boston, Newfoundland, Green-
land, Iceland, Miami, Oregon 
and Charleston. Edward was 
destined to meet Mary Grace 
while serving with her brother, 
William, on the USS Savannah. 
He retired from the U.S. Coast 
Guard as a Senior Chief Petty 
Officer after 20 years of service. 
Edward then worked 30 more 
years as a Ship Quality Assur-
ance Inspector k•iih the Civil 
Service and Global Associates. 
He enjoyed spending time with 
his family; storytelling of child-
hood, and time fishing on Sulli-
van's Island. His family 
remembers him as a loving hus-
band, father, grandfather and 
dear friend to many. He retained 
a sharp mind and keen sense of 
humor throughout his 99 years. 

He is survived by his loving 
wife of 67 years, Mary Grace 
Blanchard Grisillo, of Sullivan's 
Island, SC; six children, Linda 
M. Jensen (Larry), of Huger, SC, 
Patty Smith (Dr. David Smith), 
of Mt. Pleasant, SC, Michael 
Grisillo (Terry), of Summerton, 
SC, Ellen Pruitt (Gary), of Mt. 
Pleasant, SC, Karen Allen (Ed-
ward), of James Island, SC, and 
John Joseph Grisillo (Kathy), of 
Charleston, SC; Sixteen grand-
children. fifteen great-grand-
children, and many loving 
nieces, nephews and friends. 

The family will receive 
friends on Friday, August 28, 
2015 from 10:00 to 11:30 AM at 
McAlister-Smith Funeral Home, 
1520 Rifle Range Road, Mt. 
Pleasant, SC 29464. 

A Mass of Christian Burial 
will be held at Stella Maris 
Roman Catholic Church on Fri-
day, August 28, 2015 at 12:00 
PM with Msgr. Lawrence B 



Nicholas "Nick" 
Varney Murphy 

SULLIVAN'S ISLAND —
Nicholas "Nick" Varney Murphy, 
95, of Sullivan's Island, diedJuly 
25,2015. 

Mr. Murphy was born Decem-
ber 25,1919, in Williamson, WV, 
the son of Nicholas and Maude 
Murphy. Nick graduated from 
Williamson High School and 
briefly worked at Hercules 
Power Company in Blackburg, 
VA prior to serving in WWII in 

• the Pacific with the Marine 
. 	Corps. He continued his service 

to our country as a reservist in 
the Marine Corps during the Ko-
rean Conflict. He went on to 
have 29 year career with Sunoco 
as a Materials Manager. 

' 	Nick married his wife, June 
Wingard Murgiin 1949. Nick 1  
enjoyed trave 	with his wife 1 
throughout No America and 1  
other countries including Ire- 6 
land: He also enjoyed gardening 
and wood working. 

Nick will be deeply missed by 
his wife June, his brother . 
Richard Murphy of Montana and 
his sister Gerri VanCaneghem of 
Maryland. 

. The family will receive 
friends on Thursday, July 30_ 
2015 from 10:00AM to 11:00AM 

—al McAlister-Smith Funeral 
Home. 

A Service will be held at 
11:00am on Thursday, July 30, 
2015, at McAlister-Smith Mt. 
Pleasant Chapel, with a private 
burial to follow in Fairfax, VA. 

In lieu of flowers, memorial 
contributions may be made to 
Pet Helpers, 1447 Folly Road, 
Charleston, SC 29412 or Hospice 
of Charleston Foundation, 676 
Wando Park Blvd., Mount Pleas-
ant, SC 29464. 

Expressions of sympathy 
may be viewed or submitted on-
line at www.McAlister-
Smith.com. 

Arrangements have been en-
trusted to McALISTER-SMITH 
FUNERAL HOME 1520 Rifle 
Range Road, Mt. Pleasant, SC 
29464 (884) 8433. 

Mc:ALISTER-SMITH 
FUNERAL-CREMATION 
A :sumo NAuf 	tinl, 

Visit our guest book at 
unew.legacy.condobituariesi 

charleston 

( 	ofupcy keJ • 



The Post and Courier 

OBITUARIES 
OBITUARIES, From Page 4B 

Arthur I. Sarnott 
NEW YORK, NY- Arthur I. 

Sarnoft 84, of New York, NY and 
Sullivan's Island, SC died peace-
fully at home on May 20. Loving 
husband of Joan, brother of 
Paula Oreck, brother-in-law of 
Sandra Lipton, father of Susan 
(Jonathan Bram) and Elizabeth 
(Andrew Cohen) and adoring 
grandfather of Nathan, Lily, 
Henry, Julia and Jenny. Arthur 
was a 1949 graduate and 
Trustee of The Fieldston School. 
He graduated from Johns Hop-
kins University in 1953 where 
he also served as a Trustee and 
permanent class president. He 
married Joannie Goldberg, 
daughter of Lenora Dumas and 
Nathan Goldberg of Charleston, 
SC in 1960. Arthur served in the 
United States Army Security 
Agency in Tokyo from 1954-57 
and was awarded the Commen-
dation Ribbon for Meritorious 
Achievement. Arthur was the 
president of Bruno Appliance 
Corporation, a distribution busi-
ness founded by his father Irv-
ing. Arthur cherished the time 
spent at his home on Sullivan's 
Island surrounded by his 
Charleston friends and family. 
He was loved by many and he 
will be missed. In lieu of flowers 
contributions can be made to the 
Spoleto 	Festival 	USA 
swest@spoletousa.org  

Visit our guestbook at 
lowto.legary.conilobituariesl 

charleston 



LtCol. William 
"Bill" David 

Booth, USMCR (Ret.) 
SUWVAN'S ISLAND — LtCol. 

William "Bill" David Booth, 
USMCR (Ret.), 56. of Sullivan's 
Island, South Carolina, husband 
of Elizabeth Groble Booth 
passed away on Saturday, May 
23, 2015. A Celebration of Bill's 
Life will be held at 3:00 p.m. on 

Thursday, May 28, 
2015, in Summerall 
Chapel on the cam- 
pus of The Citadel. 
Interment will be at 

a later date in Arlington Na-
tional Cemetery. Arrangements 
by J. HENRY STUHR, 
MOUNT PLEASANT CHAPEL. 

Bill was born December 11, 
1958, in Mount Vernon, New 
York, son of Albert James Booth 
and Jacqueline Hailstone Booth. 
A 1981 graduate of The Citadel, 
he was a veteran of the U.S. Ma- 
rine Corps. having served during 
the time of Operation Desert 
Shield, and was retired from the 
U.S. Marine Corps Reserve. Bill 
was a retired pilot with United 
Airlines and loved being out on 
the water boating and fishing. 

He is survived by his wife, 
Elizabeth "Beth" Groble Booth, 
of Sullivan's Island, SC; his par- 
ents, Albert James Booth and 
Jacqueline Hailstone Booth of 
Williamsburg, VA; his sisters, 
Cynthia Booth Hines and her 
husband, Sam, of Charleston, 
SC, and Elizabeth Booth Myhre 
and her husband, Eric, of Wash-
ington, DC; and his loving nieces 
and nephews, Elizabeth, Jeb, 
Sterling, and Sarah. 

In lieu of flowers, memorials 
may be made in Bill's memory to 
Hospice Care of America, 1470 
Tobias Gadson Blvd., Suite 107, 
Charleston, 	SC 	29407 
{www.MedicalServicesofArner-
ica.com). 

A memorial message may be 
sent to the family by visiting our 
website 	 at 
www.jhenrystuhr.com. 

Visit oar guestbook at 
mow.legacy.comlobituariest 

charleston 



The Post and Courier 

OBITUARIES 
OBITUARIES, from Page 4B 

Rovena Jones Hazel 
SULLIVAN'S ISLAND - 

ltovena Jones Hazel of Sullivan's 
Island, SC, widow of Walter A. 
Hazel Sr., passed away peace-
fully surrounded by her family 
on Tuesday, April 28, 2015. The 
relatives and friends of Mrs. 
Rovena Hazel are invited to at-
tend her Mass of Christian Bur-
ial on Saturday, Muy 2 at 11:00 
AM at St. Patrick Catholic 
Church, 134 St. Philip St., 
Charleston, SC. Family will be 
receiving friends on Friday, May 
1, at the church from 7:00 to 8:00 
PM. She is survived by her chil-
dren Andrea Hazel Hamilton 
(Frank), Rovena Hazel Owens 
(Edward), Walter A. Hazel, Jr, 
Kevin J. Hazel (Jocelyn). Anna 
Maria Hazel Jones (Andrew) and 
Allan Perry Hazel (Judith), 12 
grandchildren and 9 great-
grandchildren. Donations may 
be made to St. Patrick Catholic 
Church, 134 St. Philip Street, 
Charleston, SC 29403. Friends 
may call Fielding Home For Fu-
nerals, 722.3348 or 1-800-290-
5954. Farewell and final 
commendation; St. Peter Roman 
Catholic Cemetery, Spruill Av-
enue. 

Visit our guestbook at 
trivinleguey.comlobituaries1 

Charleston 



Raymond graduated from 
Bishop England High School, 
and then went on to graduate 
from Clemson University with a 
degree in Architectural Engi-
neering. He served in the U.S. 
Navy during World War II 
aboard the U.S.S. Maddox. He re-
tired as the Head of the Architec-
tural Design Division of the 
Southern Division Naval Facili-
ties Engineering Command. 
Raymond was also an artist, spe-
cializing in portraits and 
wildlife. Raymond served as the 
President of the Charleston 
Artist Guild. He was an active 
member of Stella Maris Church 
for over 30 years, serving as a lector and singing in the choir. 
After moving to Mount Pleasant, 
he became a member of Christ 
Our King Catholic Church. 

The family will receive 
friends on Wednesday, April 15, 
2015 from 6:00 P.M. to 8:00 P.M. 
at McAlister-Smith Funeral 
Home. 

A Mass of Christian Burial 
will be held at Christ Our King 
Catholic Church in Mount Pleas-
ant, SC on Thursday, April 16, 
2015 at 10:30 A.M. Burial will 
follow in the St. Lawrence Ceme- 
tery in Charleston, SC. 	• 

Memorial donations may be 
made to The Salvation Army. 

Expressions of sympathy 
may be viewed or submitted on- 
line 	at 	wtvw.McAlister- 
Smith.com. 

aymon 
Soubeyroux 

MT. PLEASANT — Raymond 
Stokes Soubeyroux, 87, of Mount 
Pleasant. SC passed away on 
Sunday, April 12, 2015 in Mount 
Pleasant, South Carolina. He 
was born on Thursday, February 
23, 1928 in Charleston, SC to 
Frank Honore Soubeyroux, Sr. 
and Blanche Stokes Soubeyroux. 

He is survived by his wife, 
Patricia, his sisters Evelyn Blyth 
and Marie Barley (Bill), his chil-
dren Bernadette Robinson, Ray-
mond Soubeyroux, Jr. (Kim). 
Catherine Eddins (Richard), 
Mary Ann Moraska (Steve), and 
grandchildren Robert, Greyson, 
R.aymond, Rachel, Renee, and 
Kelly. Raymond will he dearly 
missed by his family and friends. 

He is predeceased by his par-
ents, his brother Honore Soubey-
roux (Eleanor), and his sister 
Bernadette Kennedy (Ai). 



June Schirmer Obituary: June Schirmer's Obituary by the Charleston Post.4 Courier. 	Page 1 of 1 

June Smith Schirmer 
June Smith Schirmer MT. PLEASANT - June Smith Schirmer, 86, of Mount Pleasant. South Carolina, widow of Sonny 
(Hagg) Schirmer, Jr., passed away peacefully at home on Wednesday, April 1, 2015. Her Funeral Service will be held 
Saturday, April 4, 2015 in J. HENRY STUHR, INC., MOUNT PLEASANT CHAPEL, 1494 Mathis Ferry Road at 1:00 pm. 
Interment will follow in Mount Pleasant Memorial Gardens. The family will receive friends Saturday in the Mount 
Pleasant Chapel from 12:00 pm until time of the service. June was born August 15, 1928 in Shiloh, South Carolina, 
daughter of the late Samuel J. Smith and the late Coria McElveen Smith. She graduated from Memminger High School 
and the Baptist College of Charleston and was a member of St. John's Lutheran Church. June loved to spend time with 
her family and friends, especially her grandchildren and great grandchildren. She was an accomplished seamstress, 
lowcountry cook and beloved homemaker. June loved playing games, old movies, the theater, and acted in plays at the 
Footlight Players where she was the secretary for about 30 years. June had many close friends, but the trio known as 
"Snap" (Myrtle Campsen), "Crackle" (June), and "Pop" (Phyllis Shaffer) enjoyed putting on successful fund-raising 
events for charitable purposes such as the Mt. Pleasant and Isle of Palms Exchange Clubs, March of Dimes, American 
Cancer Society , the Miss Teenage Charleston Pageant. Mt. Pleasant Recreation Department and the Old Moultrie 
School PTA. She is survived by her son, Sam Schirmer and his wife, Gina, of Sullivans Island, SC; two daughters, Gloria 
S. Burbage and her husband, Ronald, of Awendaw, SC, and Leize Schirmer of McClellanville, SC; seven grandchildren, 
Sass Schirmer, Grayson Schirmer, Hawkins Schirmer, Hannah Maucere and her husband, Chris, Bubba West and his 
wife, Lorraine, Frank Cisa and his wife, Paige, and Ronnie Burbage; and two great grandchildren, Rocky Walker and 
Cayla Wicker. The family would like to thank the caregivers, Anna Rice. Shawanna Watson, Tiffany Pringle, Shaquana 
Pringle and Jahquana Mitchell for their tender loving care during the final chapter of her life. In lieu of flowers, memorials 
may be made to the American Cancer Society , 5900 Core Road, Suite 504, North Charleston, SC or Piedmont 
Hospice, 501-A Deanna Lane, Wando, SC 29492. A memorial message may be sent to the family by visiting our website 
at www.jhenrystuhr.com. Visit our guestbook at www.legacy.com/obituaries/  charleston 

Funeral Home 
J. Henry Stuhr Mount Pleasant Chapel 
1494 Mathis Ferry Road Mount Pleasant, SC 29464 
(843) 881-9293 
Published in Charleston Post & Courier on Apr. 3, 2015 

http://N.vww.legacy.com/obituaries/charleston/obituary-print.aspx?n=june-smith-schirmer&... 4/14/2015 



lers aer 
SULLIVAN'S ISLAND — John 

Hiers Kizer, of Sullivan's Island, 
South Carolina, born Nov 20, 

1925, passed awry 
peacefully at his 
home on March 21, 
2015. His Funeral 
Service will be held 

Wednesday, March 25, 2015 in 
the J. HENRY STUHR, INC. 
MOUNT PLEASANT CHAPLI,. 
1494 Mathis Ferry Road at 2:00 
pm. Entombment with military 
honors will follow in Mount 
Pleasant Memorial Gardens. 
The family will receive friends at 
the funeral home on Tuesday. 
March 24, 2015 from 4:00 pm 
until 6:00 pm. 

John was predeceased by his 
wife of 25 years, Billie Faye 
Kizer in1997. He is survived by 
his sister, Betty Kizer of New 
York and his brother Gene Kizer 
and family of Charleston; step-
daughters Dale Stratford of At-
lanta and Shay Stratford of 
Asheville; the extended family of 
Billie Stratford, including Hugh 
Purcell, his sisters and parents, 

• and Laura Westbrook. 
His true family also included 

life long friends the Nettles fam-
ily (Aaron, Linda, and their three 
sons and their families) and Car-
olyn Garner and family from 
Sullivan's Island; the Sertichs 
from Atlanta and Sullivan's Is-
land: and Royce and Patty Bree-
land of Mount Pleasant: and 
many others. 

He was in the US Navy for 3 
years and in the Naval Reserve 
for another 7 years. He worked 
as a general foreman in the 
maintenance shop of the Public 
Works Department at the 
Charleston Naval Shipyard for 
38 years, retiring in 1980. He 
was a Master Mason and served 
with the Masons for over 50 
year.;. His skills and talents in-
cluded carpentry, masonry, re-
pair of any tool or object ever 
made, bird house design, and 
toys for children. 

He was an avid fisherman 
and spent his life on the water, at 
his home that he built on Sulli-
van's Island with his wife Billie 
and his friend Royce. 

He was a man of honor and 
generosity, and if he fussed at 
you it was because he cared. He 
will be missed more than he 
could imagine. Bless you John 
Kizer. 

A memorial message may be 
sent to the family by visiting our 
website 	 at 
www.jhenrystuhr.com. 

Visit our guestbook at 
www.tegacy.comlobituaries1 

charleston 



ucas ti e 
Bennett Cavanaugh 

SULLIVAN'S ISLAND — Lucas 
-Luke" Bennett Cavanaugh, 17, 
of Sullivan's Island, South Car-
olina, passed away on Sunday, 
January 18, 2015. A Celebration 
of Luke's Life will be held at 
11:00 a.m. on Friday, January 
23, 2015 in the Church of The 
Holy Cross, 2520 Middle Street, 
Sullivan's Island. Interment will 
be private. The family will re-
ceive friends Thursday, January 
22, 2015 from 6:00 p.m. to 8:00 
p.m. in J. HENRY STUHR INC., 
MOUNT PLEASANT CHAPEL, 
1494 Mathis Ferry Road. 

Luke was born November 23, 
1997 in Charlotte, North Car-
olina, son of David Bennett Ca-
vanaugh and Elizabeth Mann 
Cavanaugh. A junior at Wando 
High School, he aspired to at-
tend The University of Cincin-
nati to study automotive 
engineering and design. One of 
Luke's main passions was 

restoring his '81 Corvette. He 
loved his family, music, playing 
the guitar, and all kinds of ani-
mals. He will be remembered as 
a free spirit and one who was al-
ways a kind friend to others. 

Luke is survived by his par-
ents, Elizabeth Mann Ca-
vanaugh of Sullivan's Island and 
David Bennett Cavanaugh of 
Mount Pleasant, SC; his broth-
ers, Dirk Cavanaugh of Sulli-
van's Island, SC and Nick 
Cavanaugh of Clemson Univer-
sity; his maternal grandparents, 
Tom and Billye Mann of 
Charleston, SC; his paternal 
grandmother, Greta Cavanaugh 
of Riverdale, NY; his aunts and 
uncles, Tommy and Denise 
Mann, Jr., Rob and Melinda 
Mann, and Bill and Shelly 
Mann, all of Charlotte, NC, 
Stephanie Mann Reed of 
Charleston, SC, John and Lisa 
Brown of New York City, and 
Todd and Rosie Cavanaugh of 
New York City; and his many 
cousins. 

In lieu of flowers, memorials 
may be made in Luke's memory 
to COEXIST, 1054 31st Street 
NW, Suite 330, Washington, DC 
20007 (wwi.v.coexist.org/donate).  

A memorial message may be 
sent to the family by visiting our 
website 	 at 
www.jhenrystuhr. com. 

Visit our guestbook at 
wwutlegacy.contlobituaries1 

charleston 



-A. 
McALISTER-SMITH 

RJNERAL•CREMATION 

1,0 

Lawrence Logan Dodds 
MT. PLEASANT — Lawrence 

Logan Dodds, 25, of Mt. Pleas-
ant, SC died on Wednesday, Jan-
uary 7, 2015. 

He was born on Monday, 
March 13, 1989 in ML Pleasant, 
SC to Debi Dodds and Lawrence 
A. Dodds, Jr. 

Logan graduated from 
Wando High School and received 
a Bachelor of Science Degree 
from the College of Charleston in 
2012. After working in the wine 
and spirit business, he choose to 
return to the College of 
Charleston to earn a teacher's 
certificate to enable him to teach 
special needs children. Logan en-
joyed his soccer, discovering and 
watching old movies, boating, 
fishing in the creeks and 
marshes behind Sullivan's Is-
land and Isle of Palms. But most 
of all he loved his music and his 
guitar. 

Logan recently adopted a 
puppy named Cora, and they 
were living in an apartment 
close to the college where he was 
excelling in the education pro-
gram. He loved spending quality 
time with his two nephews, Har-
ris and Thomas. His family re- 
members him as a sweet, loving, 
thoughtful and considerate 
young man. His smile and 
unique laugh will be cherished 
and missed by his friends and 
family. 

He is survived by Father; 
Lawrence A. Dodds Jr, of Sulli-
van's Island, SC, Mother, Debi 
Dodds, of Mount Pleasant, SC, 
one sister, Jessica D Stone (Har-
ris), of Mount Pleasant, SC, 
Grandparents, Sarah F. and 
James Alien Ritter Jr., and 
Grandmother, Mildred W Dodds, 
Aunts and Uncles, Diane Dodds 
Levesque, Gin Dodds Forsberg 
(Joe). Sally Dodds Collins (Nick), 
Suzy Dodds Kuppens (Tom), 
Jack Allen Ritter (Suzanne), 
Gerald J Dodds (Donna), and 
two nephews, Harris and 
Thomas Stone, and his loving 
friend, Karyn Simon. 

He was predeceased by his 
Grandfather; Lawrence A Dodds. 

The family will receive 
friends on Monday, January 12, 
2015 from 5:00 PM to 7:00 PM at 
McAlister-Smith Funeral Home, 
1520 Rifle Range Road, Mt. 
Pleasant, SC 29464, where the 
vigil wake will he held at 5:00 
prn. 

A Mass of Christian Burial 
will be held at Stella Maris 
Catholic Church on Tuesday, 
January 13, 2015 at 11:00 AM 
with Rev. Msgr. Lawrence B. 
McInerny, J.C.L.officiating. Bur-
ial will follow in the Mt. Pleasant 
Memorial Gardens cemetery. 

In lieu of flowers, Memorial 
donations may he made in his 
honor to Special Olympics, 
http://so-sc.org. 

Expressions of sympathy 
may be viewed or submitted on- 
line 	at 	wvvvv,McAlister- 
Smith.com. 

Arrangements have been en-
trusted to McALISTER-SMITH 
FUNERAL HOME, MT PLEAS-
ANT CHAPEL, 1520 RIFLE 
RANGE ROAD, MT PLEAS-
ANT, SC (843) 884-3833. 

Visit our guestbook at 
unvit.legacy.cornlobituaries1  

charleston 



 

1 

 

  TOWN OF SULLIVAN’S ISLAND, SOUTH CAROLINA 

PLANNING COMMMISSION  

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

Monday, November 9, 2015 

 

A regular meeting of the Town of Sullivan’s Island Planning Commission was held at 6:30 p.m., 

Monday, November 9, 2015 at Town Hall, 2050-B Middle Street, all requirements of the 

Freedom of Information Act satisfied.  Present: Commissioners Chair Gary Visser, Sydney 

Cook, Carlsen Huey and Carl Hubbard. Staff members present:  Zoning Administrator 

Henderson, Asst. to Administrator Darrow and Building Official Robinson. 

 

Call to Order.  Chair Visser called the meeting to order, stated press and public were duly 

notified pursuant to state law and Commission had a quorum (Commissioners Cole, Currey and 

Poletti had excused absences).  One person was present in audience; no media. 

 

I.  Approval of Agenda – Commission approved agenda with no changes 

 

II.  Approval of Minutes 

 

MOTION:  Mr. Hubbard moved to approve the September 9, 2015 minutes; 

seconded by Mr. Huey; MOTION UNANIMOUSLY PASSED. 

 

III.   Items for Information 

 

1.   Conservation Easement Uses and Structures:  Update on proposed text amendments 
 

Staff Update (Zoning Administrator Henderson) 

 

 Updated Commissioners on the status of the proposed Zoning Ordinance text 

amendments related to conservation easement uses and structures.  The text amendments, 

recommended by Planning Commission to Council at its September 9, 2015 meeting, are 

currently under Council consideration.  Council approved First Reading, by Title Only, 

and Second Reading consideration is scheduled for the November 17, 2015 Council 

meeting (Ord 2015-8). 

 

 Reviewed proposed changes Council is currently considering to the Planning 

Commission’s recommended text amendments.   Council does not request the 

Commission offer additional recommendations on this ordinance language; however, 

Mayor O’Neil asked Staff to advise the Commission of the ordinance progress and 

potential changes, as a courtesy. 

 

 Potential amendments relating to the applicability clause of language in Ordinance 2015-

8 are being considered by Council, specifically related to the scope and authority Board 

of Zoning Appeals (BZA) has to approve and/or deny proposed stand-alone structures on 

a residential lot with a conservation easement on it.  Language in Exhibit A (attached) 



 

 

2 

 

identifies three possible scenarios to provide the BZA guidelines in exercising its 

authority to grant or deny a request for a stand-alone structure. 

 

o Applicability Suggestion 1:  language forwarded to Council by the Planning 

Commission 

o Applicability Suggestion 2:  incorporates requirements for an applicant to provide 

unusual physical circumstances or topographical hardships in order to obtain a 

special exception for stand-alone structure.  BZA retains ability to deny a request 

if their findings determined the request to “be of a substantial detriment to 

adjacent property or to the public good, and the granting of the use will harm the 

character of the district.” 

o Applicability Suggestion 3:   builds upon the logic in Suggestion 2 and requires 

the applicant to link his request for a conservation easement and/or stand-alone 

structure to guidelines and findings in specific Internal Revenue Code statutes.  

 

Commissioners reviewed the three suggestions and discussed the scope and authority already 

afforded to the BZA by local and state statutes.  It was noted that the BZA already has the stated 

authority, in its By-Laws, to deny an applicant based upon the language stated in Suggestion 2 

above (reiterated below for reference): 

 

BZA retains ability to deny a request if their findings determined the request to “be of a 

substantial detriment to adjacent property or to the public good, and the granting of the 

use will harm the character of the district.”  

 

ACTION:  Commissioners did not make a formal recommendation to Council on the 

aforementioned changes under Council consideration. Commissioner consensus was to 

offer the following feedback to Council on this item: 

 

The Planning Commission appreciates Town Council’s concerns for specific 

language for review by the Board of Zoning Appeals.  We feel these changes (as 

noted and described in the attached document – Exhibit A), will insure additional 

review by the Board of Zoning Appeals of any conservation easement structure that 

may be presented under these proposed specific exceptions.    

 

2.    2016 Meeting Calendar 

 MOTION:  Mr. Hubbard moved to approve the 2016 Meeting Calendar presented 

by Staff; seconded by Ms. Cook. MOTION UNANIMOUSLY PASSED. 

 

3.  Sullivan’s Island Program for Public Information (National Flood Insurance Program 

     CRS Program):  Consideration of procedure for establishment of a Program for Public 

                                                                                                                  Information (PPI) 

 

Zoning Administrator Henderson reviewed the status of the Town’s fledgling Program for Public 

Information (PPI), last discussed by the Commission in March 2015. 

 

 



 

 

3 

 

PPI Development Update (7 steps to development of this program) 

 Step 1: Establish PPI Committee  (seeking resident financial expert to serve on 

Committee) 

 Step 2:  Assess community’s public information needs 

 Step 3:  Formulate messages 

 Step 4:  Identify outreach projects 

 Step 5:  Examine other initiatives 

 Step 6:  Prepare PPI document 

 Step 7:  Implement, monitor and evaluate 

 

Staff is currently working through steps 2-5 above, using GIS mapping tools and the Town’s 

website, in addition to other media outlets, to accomplish these steps.  Next step- #6: develop a 

draft PPI for consideration by the PPI Committee.  Goal is to present a draft PPI document to the 

Planning Commission by its February 2016 meeting. 

 

Chair Visser sought clarification from Staff that development of this PPI program comports with 

the strategies and goals of the Town’s Comprehensive Plan, and, that it is appropriate for the 

Planning Commission to offer provide feedback on this.   

 

Zoning Administrator Henderson clarified that the Town’s Comprehensive Plan does identify 

this type of outreach as strategies to assist with its Land Use and Natural Resources goals.  

 

Chair Visser recommended that Staff identify and link Town Comprehensive Plan goals and 

implementation strategies to the PPI document.  He felt this would be important for the public to 

know. 

 

4.    Staff Update on Town Projects – oral report 

 

Commissioners made the following inquiries/comments: 

Chair Visser noted temporary Town Hall handicapped parking lot needs to have drainage 

addressed/repaired.   The record-breaking rains have made the lot inaccessible tonight. He noted 

Commissioner Cole was prepared to be a tonight’s meeting, but the handicap parking lot was 

flooded for the bulk of the day and inaccessible for his use. 

 

5.    Correspondence/Comments – None received 

 

6.    Next Meeting – (6:30pm) Wednesday, December 9, 2015 at Town Hall 
 

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at approximately 7:45 p.m. (Mr. Huey 

motioned; Mr. Hubbard seconded; unanimously passed). 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

Lisa Darrow 

Asst. to Administrator 

 

Approved at the Wednesday, January 13, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting 



 

 

4 

 

EXHIBIT A – November 9, 2015 Planning Commission 

TOPIC: Conservation Easement Structures 

 

Council is currently reviewing proposed text amendments on this topic (Ord. 2015-08) 

Ord 2015-08 has received First Reading, Title Only. Mayor O’Neil asked that Staff advise 

Planning Commission of text amendment status and Council’s potential text changes (no 

recommendation requested by Council)  

 

Current Planning Commission endorsed language: 

 

Applicability. As an incentive to preserving environmentally sensitive properties zoned for 

residential purposes (RS District), property owners (grantor) may establish certain 

recreational uses and structures as part of a permanent conservation easement. These non-

residential uses must include retaining or protecting natural or open-space values of real 

property, assuring its availability for noncommercial agricultural, forestal, recreational, or 

open-space use, protecting natural resources, maintaining or enhancing air or water quality, 

or preserving the historical, architectural or archaeological aspects of real property. 

 

Suggestion #1: Increased regulation requiring finding of hardship: 
  

(a) Applicability. As an incentive to preserving environmentally sensitive properties zoned 

for residential purposes (RS Zoning District), property owners (grantor) may establish 

certain recreational uses and structures as part of a the Board of Zoning Appeals may 

authorize a conservation easement structure or use by identifying one or more findings of 

an unusual physical circumstance or topographical hardship along with the establishment 

of a permanent conservation easement: 1) finding of physical and topographical hardship 

due to erosion 2) increased risk of erosion 3) existence of heritage trees or other unusual 

natural feature 4) an extraordinary or exceptional condition pertaining to the small size or 

unique shape of a parcel. Establishment of a Conservation Easement Use or Structure 

may not be of a substantial detriment to adjacent property or to the public good, and the 

granting of the use will not harm the character of the district. Additionally, such uses 

shall include retaining or protecting natural or open-space values of real property, 

assuring its availability for noncommercial agricultural, forestal, recreational, or open-

space use, protecting natural resources, maintaining or enhancing air or water quality, or 

preserving the historical, architectural or archaeological aspects of real property. 

 

Suggestion #2: Requiring BZA findings consistent with IRS: 
  

(a) Applicability. As an incentive to preserving environmentally sensitive properties zoned 

for residential purposes (RS Zoning District), the Board of Zoning Appeals may 

authorize a conservation easement structure or use by identifying one or more findings of 

a conservation purpose as defined by the IRC (Internal Revenue Code) § 170(h)(4)(A) 

and 26 CFR 1.170A-14(d)(2)-(5): (1) preservation of land for outdoor recreation by, or 

the education of, the general public; (2) protection of relatively natural habitat or 

ecosystem; (3) preservation of open space, where there is significant public benefit, and 

(a) the preservation is for the scenic enjoyment of the general public, or (b) pursuant to a 



 

 

5 

 

clearly delineated Federal, State or local governmental conservation policy; or 

(4) Preservation of historically important land area or a certified historical 

structure. Establishment of a Conservation Easement Use or Structure may not be of a 

substantial detriment to adjacent property or to the public good, and the granting of the 

use will not harm the character of the district.  

 

Suggestion #3: Language Planning Commission discussed 

 

Applicability. As an incentive to preserving environmentally sensitive properties zoned for 

residential purposes (RS District), property owners (grantor) may establish certain 

recreational uses and structures as part of a permanent conservation easement. These non-

residential uses must include retaining or protecting natural or open-space values of real 

property, assuring its availability for noncommercial agricultural, forestal, recreational, or 

open-space use, protecting natural resources, maintaining or enhancing air or water quality, 

or preserving the historical, architectural or archaeological aspects of real property.  

Establishment of a Conservation Easement Use or Structure may not be of a substantial 

detriment to adjacent property or to the public good, and the granting of the use will not harm 

the character of the district.  

 

 

 

 
 

 

 



FINANCE
COUNCIL MEETING

January 19, 2016

Chairman Mayor Pat O'Neil
All Members of Council

All matters connected with Town finances, taxes and licenses. The Committee shall prepare and
submit an annual operating budget and capital improvement program to Council.

I. Matters for Action by Council

II. Matters for Discussion by Council

A. Fiscal Year 2017 Budget Time-line

III. New Matters Presented to Council

A. December 2015 Financial Report

IV. Matters Pending By Council



Finance

Points of Interest

December 2015

Revenue

1. The Town has received close to 83% of the projected revenue for building

permits as of December 31st. Construction is also driving business license

revenue.

2. Business license revenue will increase over the next two months due to

renewals.

3. The Town will receive the majority of this fiscal year’s property tax revenue over

the next three months.

4. Water and Sewer revenue remained strong through December.

Expenditures

1. The cost of the relocation and operation of the temporary Town Hall as of

December 2015 was $402,600. The cost of the temporary Town Hall is

approximately $4,000 per month.

2. The Town paid approximately $193,400 during November as progress payments

for the new Town Hall. Transfers are being made from the 2014 GO Bond

Money Market account into the Operating account as construction payments are

made.

Other

1. The 6 month projections will be presented at the February Workshop.



CHECKING ACCOUNTS $ 8,551,619.83

MONEY MARKET - 2014 GO BOND FUNDS 2,143,248.81

SC LOCAL GOVERNMENT INVESTMENT POOL 204,589.98

INVESTMENTS 150,026.68
CASH ON HAND 600.00

TOTAL CASH & INVESTMENTS: $ 11,050,085.30

Unassigned:

Operating $ 988,198.11

2014 GO Bond Funds 2,143,248.81

Land Sale Proceeds 3,720,635.50

Capital Improvements Reserve 414,500.00

Emergency Reserve 1,075,000.00

Assigned:

William Bradley Memorial Fund 20,000.00

Committed: -

Restricted:

County Accommodations Tax Funds - County Deputies 70,085.00

Land Trust Fund 35,118.25

Confederate Memorial Fund 451.84
Victim's Rights Fund 67,046.58

Total Cash & Investment Accounts $ 8,534,284.09

PETTY CASH:
Petty Cash $ 400.00

TOTAL GENERAL FUND $ 8,534,684.09

Operating $ 304,767.76

SRF - Debt Service Retirement 90,865.39

SRF - Debt Service Reserve Fund 22,626.84

Capital Improvement Fund Sewer 107,876.53
Sewer Depreciation Fund 36,362.88

Total Sewer Fund $ 471,634.01

December 31, 2015

Cash & Investment Balances

Finance - Page 2



Operating $ 856,345.41

Capital Improvement Fund Water 187,109.81

CWS CIP Improvements Fund 355,197.97

Water Depreciation Fund 46,167.97
Petty Cash 200.00

Total Water Fund $ 1,445,021.16

Unreserved $ 470,558.46

Total Hospitality Tax Fund - Restricted $ 470,558.46

Unreserved $ 71,197.04

Total Local Accommodations Tax Fund - $ 71,197.04

Tree Bank Fund - Committed $ 56,990.54

Total Tree Fund $ 56,990.54

TOTAL CASH & INVESTMENTS: $ 11,050,085.30

1% Firemen's Fund - First Federal Money Market $ 211,017.70

Total 1% FIREMEN'S FUND $ 211,017.70

Finance - Page 3



Interest Interest Earned Interest Earned
Bank Rate Current Month Year-to-Date

Investment Pool 0.4859% 90.08 406.81

South State Bank 0.20% 851.22 5,434.78
Money Market

South State Bank 0.20% 260.05 1,711.56
MM - Bond

South State
Investment Services 0.01% 1.44 7.90

$ 1,202.79 $ 7,561.05

Month Ended YTD

General Fund $ 903.80 $ 5,847.32

Sewer Fund 77.56 438.16

Water Fund 156.98 883.04

Local A-Tax Funds 7.67 47.44

Hospitality Tax Fund 50.64 309.54

Tree Fund 6.14 35.55

Total Earned 1,202.79$ 7,561.05$

Investment Income
Month Ended December 31, 2015 and YTD

Interest Earned by Fund

Finance - Page 4



8K *()-%*().

<673? D7@3<A<A9 C7D57AF2

355BGAF K73D FB 63F7 43?3A57 C5F

D7@3<A<A9

5GDD7AF C7D<B62 )*'()'*()- FB )*'+)'*()-

4G697F D7CBDF 4K 8GA5F<BA

FBIA B8 EG??<H3A#E <E?3A6

-( !

4G697F76 5GDD7AF

8YTNXRUT2 +((( +(((

DOZOTYO

)(%+(((%)((( CDB5776E 8DB@ 53C<F3? ?73E7 --$(((&(( --$(((&(((&(( )(((&((

)(%+(((%++(( <AF7D7EF 73DA76 .$(((&(( %)/+&,-1(+&0( %+.$)/+&,-

)(%+(((%.((( CB?<57 355<67AF D7CBDFE *((&(( %0,-&((1.(&(( %,*+)$(,-&((

)(%+(((%0((( FD3AE87D 8DB@ I3F7D 8GA6 *(($(((&(( *(($(((&(((&(( )(((&((

)(%+(((%1)(( ?<57AE7E .0+$(((&(( -)+$./+&.1)($/0,&,/ /-).1$+*.&+)

)(%+(((%1))( 6B9 C7D@<FE /-$(((&(( -,$+00&((-$0,/&(( /+*($.)*&((

)(%+(((%1)*( 4B3F C7D@<FE (&(( %)-&(((&(( ()-&((

)(%+(((%1)+( 46& B8 LBA<A9 3CC73?E 3CC?<5 877 *$(((&(( )$+,(&((**(&(( ./..(&((

)(%+(((%1),( 67E<9A D7H<7I 4B3D6 877E ))$(((&(( )$-00&,**$++1&-0 ),1$,))&-0

)(%+(((%1)-( C?3AA<A9 5B@@<EE<BA 877E )$(((&(( /-(&(((&(( /-*-(&((

)(%+(((%1+(( 4G<?6<A9 C7D@<FE *-($(((&(( ,*$0(+&)/)0$*11&10 )/*(/$)1.&0+

)(%+(((%1+-( FD<@@<A9 " CDGA<A9 <A5B@7 )($*-(&(( .$*-(&((+$*-(&(( .),$(((&((

)(%+(((%1,(( CDBC7DFK F3J7E % BC7D3F<A9 )$1/($(((&(( )$-1/$)0*&,-+,($+0-&*) 0)+/*$0)/&--

)(%+(((%1,() CDBC7DFK F3J D7H7AG7 % 9B 4BA6+(,$/((&(( +(,$/((&(((&(( )(((&((

)(%+(((%1,)( ;B@7EF736 7J7@CF D78GA6 )($(((&(( )($(((&(((&(( )(((&((

)(%+(((%1-)( 8<A7E 5B?? % D75BD67D -($(((&(( )*$),.&*0*$.+(&/) *,+/$0-+&/*

)(%+(((%1.(( 877 E<@C?7 F<F?7E (&(( %-(&(((&(( (-(&((

)(%+(((%1.1( 3<6 FB EG46<H<E<BAE +-$(((&(( ),$,)0&*-(&(( ,)*($-0)&/-

)(%+(((%1/)( H<5F<@E D<9;FE 8GA6 0$(((&(( 0$(((&(((&(( )(((&((

)(%+(((%1/-( 47H7D397 F7@C& C7D@<FE *,$(((&(( *,$(((&(((&(( )(((&((

)(%+(((%1/.( 8D3A5;<E7 877E % 57?? FBI7D ,-$)((&(( *-$0,+&+-+$0-)&++ -/)1$*-.&.-

)(%+(((%1/.- 8D3A5;<E7 877E % BF;7D ,+($(((&(( +1/$0.1&)+,)&.1 1++*$)+(&0/

)(%+(((%1//( EF3F7 355B@@B63F<BAE F3J *.$(((&(( %*$/.,&+-(&(( %))*0$/.,&+-

)(%+(((%1//0 FD3AE87D ?B53? 3%F3J +($(((&(( )-$(((&((*$-((&(( -()-$(((&((

)(%+(((%1//1 FD3AE87D 8DB@ ;BEC& F3J +*($(((&(( )-0$111&((*.$../&(( -().)$(()&((

)(%+(((%1/0( ?&B&E&F& CDBC&DB??435> )+($(((&(( .1$11(&+)(&(( -,.($((1&.1

)(%+(((%1/0) ?&B&E&F& D7H7AG7 8GA6 0*$(((&(( +1$*1+&/*(&(( ,0,*$/(.&*0

)(%+(((%11(( @<E57??3A7BGE <A5B@7 *(-$(((&(( )()$)/*&00,+$/+)&), ,1)(+$0*/&)*

)(%+(((%11() CDB5776E%E3?7E B8 3EE7FE ,$(((&(( ,$(((&(((&(( )(((&((

)(%+(((%11(+ 4D<5> E3?7E (&(( %)-(&(()-(&(( ()-(&((

8YTNXRUT2 8YTNXRUT2 +((( +(((

FUXMS DOZOTYO ,$1./$*-(&(( ,.*$-.)&1) )$+)*$0+1&)- +$.-,$,)(&0- (&((

=4?3AFBA ()')0'*(). +2()2+*C@
PS),)W)*V

CMQO ) UP *

Finance - Page 5



8I *()-%*().

<673> C7?3<@<@9 B7C57@E2

355AF@E I73C EA 63E7 43>3@57 B5E

C7?3<@<@9

5FCC7@E B7C<A62 )*'()'*()- EA )*'+)'*()-

4F697E C7BACE 4I 8F@6

EAH@ A8 DF>><G3@#D <D>3@6

-( !

4F697E76 5FCC7@E

8UPK2 )) D7H7C 8F@6

CLVLPUL

))%+(((%*((( EC3@D87C 8C& 67BC75<3E<A@ 8F@6)(*$-((&(( )(*$-((&(((&(( )(((&((

))%+(((%++(( <@E7C7DE 73C@76 )$(((&(( -)1&////&-. -*,0(&*+

))%+(((%,))( D7H7C D7CG<57 5;3C97D 00.$1.-&/- ,)-$-/.&11-/$(,0&*0 ,/,/)$+00&/.

))%+(((%,))) B7@3>E<7D -$-((&(( ,$.+(&(((&(( 0,0/(&((

))%+(((%,))* 36?<@<DEC3E<G7 355AF@E 877D )$+((&(( %/(&((*((&(( %-)$+/(&((

))%+(((%,+(( E<7%<@ 877D " <@DE3>> (&(( %/((&((/((&(( (/((&((

))%+(((%,-(( D7CG<57 53>>D -((&(( ,/(&(((&(( 1,+(&((

))%+(((%,.(( <@DB75E<A@ 877D )$-((&(( 0((&((*((&(( -+/((&((

))%+(((%,1(( ?<D57>>3@7AFD *((&(( *((&(((&(( )(((&((

))%+(((%1*(( EC3@D87C 8CA? 97@7C3> 8F@ )*-$(((&(( )*-$(((&(((&(( )(((&((

8UPK2 8UPK2 )) D7H7C 8F@6

EQTJO CLVLPUL )$)*,$,.-&/- -0$**-&0, ,/-$-+0&11 .,0$1*.&/. (&((

=4>3@EA@ ()')0'*(). +2((2+.B?
MO),)S)*R

BJNL ) QM +

Finance - Page 6



8J *()-%*().

<673? D7@3<A<A9 C7D57AF2

355BGAF J73D FB 63F7 43?3A57 C5F

D7@3<A<A9

5GDD7AF C7D<B62 )*'()'*()- FB )*'+)'*()-

4G697F D7CBDF 4J 8GA6

FBIA B8 EG??<H3A#E <E?3A6

-( !

4G697F76 5GDD7AF

8VQL2 )* I3F7D 8GA6

DMWMQVM

)*%+(((%*((( FD3AE87D 8D& 67CD75<3F<BA 8GA6)*($(((&(( )*($(((&(((&(( )(((&((

)*%+(((%++(( <AF7D7EF 73DA76 *$(((&(( )$)).&1.)-.&10 -.00+&(,

)*%+(((%,))( I3F7D E3?7E 11*$,-,&+( ,,/$0))&((.($*(-&,/ ,--,,$.,+&+(

)*%+(((%,))) C7A3?F<7E -$-((&(( )$.*,&0.)$*+(&(( +(+$0/-&),

)*%+(((%,))* 36@<A<EFD3F<H7 355BGAF 877E 0$(((&(( +$.0-&(0.(1&1* ,.,$+),&1*

)*%+(((%,)), ;J6D3AF @7F7D C7D@<FE *((&(( %-(&(((&(( %*-*-(&((

)*%+(((%,+(( @7F7D 5BAA75F " D7A7I3?E /$(((&(( %)/$-(1&(((&(( %*-(*,$-(1&((

)*%+(((%,,(( @7F7D D7C3<DE -((&(( -((&(((&(( )(((&((

)*%+(((%,-(( E7DH<57 53??E -((&(( +*(&(((&(( .,)0(&((

)*%+(((%,.(( <AEC75F<BA 877E *-(&(( *-(&(((&(( )(((&((

)*%+(((%,.)( 435>8?BI F7EF<A9 /((&(( ),(&((,(&(( *(-.(&((

)*%+(((%,1(( @<E57??3A7BGE )((&(( %)0$-+(&(((&(( %)0$-+()0$.+(&((

8VQL2 8VQL2 )* I3F7D 8GA6

FRUKP DMWMQVM )$)+/$*(,&+( .*$*,*&+/ -1/$0,-&,( -+1$+-0&1( (&((

=4?3AFBA ()')0'*(). +2((2+.C@
NP),)T)*S

CKOM * RN +

Finance - Page 7



7I )'(,$)'(-

;562= B6>2;?;?8 A6B46?D1

244@E?D I62B D@ 52D6 32=2?46 A4D

B6>2;?;?8

4EBB6?D A6B;@51 ()&'(&)'(, D@ ()&*(&)'(,

3E586D B6A@BD 3I 7E?5

D@G? @7 CE==;F2?"C ;C=2?5

,' !

3E586D65 4EBB6?D

7UPK1 (* 9@CA;D2=;DI D2H

BLVLPUL

(*$*'''$**'' ;?D6B6CD 62B?65 '%'' $*'0%,+,'%-+ '*'0%,+

(*$*'''$0..0 9@CA;D2=;DI D2H '%'' $))/#+/-%/-)+#'.+%0+ '))/#+/-%/-

7UPK1 7UPK1 (* 9@CA;D2=;DI D2H

DQTJO BLVLPUL '%'' )+#(),%,/ ))/#.0-%+' $))/#.0-%+' '%''

7UPK1 (. =@42= 2$D2H

BLVLPUL

(.$*'''$**'' ;?D6B6CD 62B?65 '%'' $+.%++.%-. '+.%++

(.$*'''$0... )! 4@E?DI 2$D2H '%'' $,#/-)%/.'%'' ',#/-)%/.

(.$*'''$0../ (! =@42= 2$D2H '%'' $(,#+0'%'-(#(+)%(. '(,#+0'%'-

7UPK1 7UPK1 (. =@42= 2$D2H

DQTJO BLVLPUL '%'' (#(+0%/+ )(#+''%*. $)(#+''%*. '%''

7UPK1 (0 DB66 7E?5

BLVLPUL

(0$*'''$**'' DB66 7E?5 ;?D6B6CD '%'' $*,%,,-%(+ '*,%,,

(0$*'''$0*(' DB66 A6B>;DC '%'' $)#-*/%'')#(),%'' ')#-*/%''

7UPK1 7UPK1 (0 DB66 7E?5

DQTJO BLVLPUL '%'' )#(*(%(+ )#-.*%,, $)#-.*%,, '%''

!$(')* "'*#% !$,$&+$ '%'' ).#+'-%,- ),)#/.'%*) '%'' $),)#/.'%*) '%''

<3=2?D@? '(&(/&)'(- *1'-1)'A>
MO(+(S()R

AJNL ( QM (

Finance - Page 8



;M +)*.&+)*/

>895@ F9A5>B>B< D9F79BH3

577CIBH M95F HC 85H9 65@5B79 D7H

F9A5>B>B<

7IFF9BH D9F>C83 *+()*(+)*. HC *+(,*(+)*.

6I8<9H F9DCFH 6M ;IB7H>CB
HCKB C; GI@@>J5B$G >G@5B8

.) "

6I8<9H98 7IFF9BH

;[VOZTWV3 .))) ;>F9 89D5FHA9BH

9\XQVPTZ[YQ

*)&.)))&)*)) G5@5F>9G # K5<9G .1)%)))')) +/0%0,)'0.-0%-21'10 -/,*+%+/2'+.

*)&.)))&)+)) ;8 DFH GC7>5@ G97IF>HM -,%)))')) +)%,.2'/-,%,0,'+/ -0++%/-)',/

*)&.)))&)+*) ;8 DFH =95@H= >BGIF5B79 2)%)))')) -1%,2)'.00%,12'2. .--*%/)2'-,

*)&.)))&)++) ;8 DFH DC@ C;; F9H>F9A9BH 1+%)))')) ,2%0+.'0)/%.+/',/ -1-+%+0-',)

*)&.)))&),)) ;8 <5G # C>@ *+%)))')) 0%2*0',0,0.'/+ //-%)1+'/,

*)&.)))&),*) ;8 8>9G9@ /%.))')) -%0.,'01*-,'.. 0,*%0-/'++

*)&.)))&)-)) ;8 J9=>7@9 F9D5>FG +)%)))')) *)%1+,',*02)')/ .-2%*0/'/2

*)&.)))&)/)) ;8 GIDD@>9G # A5H9F>5@G +)%)))')) 0%-),'*-+%)2,')1 ,0*+%.2/'1/

*)&.)))&)0)) ;8 H9@9D=CB9 *)%)))')) 0%)./'.-110'1/ 0*+%2-,'-/

*)&.)))&)1)) 7C' K>89 F58>C GMGH9A *1%)))')) *%-1+'***%-/2',2 1*/%.*0'12

*)&.)))&)2)) ;8 DCK9F # @><=HG **%)))')) .%0/0'1,00,'/1 .+.%+,+'*0

*)&.)))&*))) ;8 >BGIF5B79 ..%)))')) +/%+).'*+/%**1'), -1+1%02-'11

*)&.)))&*+)) ;8 GMGH9A F9D5>FG # A5>BH **%)))')) /%+*0',-+2')) .0-%01+'//

*)&.)))&*+), IB>;CFAG # 7@CH=>B< *)%)))')) +%1.+'+10%*-0'0+ +20%*-0'0+

*)&.)))&*,)) ;8 8I9G # 79FH>; ;99G *%)))')) 2))')))')) 2)*))'))

*)&.)))&*-)) ;8 HF5>B>B< # G9A>B5FG 2%.))')) ,%/*/'.-*%++)'-) ,1.%11,'-/

*)&.)))&,))) ;8 A>G79@@5B9CIG 9LD9BG9 1%.))')) 0%+)+'.+)')) 1.*%+20'-1

*)&.)))&,*)* ;8 & 896H ;IB898 9EI>DA9BH ,)%)))')) &*1%)*/')))')) &/)-1%)*/'))

*)&.)))&,*)+ ;8&75D>H5@ @95G9 DF>B7>D5@ -.%0-.')) *.%***'+-)')) ,,,)%/,,'0/

*)&.)))&,**) DFCD # 9EI>D 4 !.))) 0%.))')) ,%1.0'+,)')) .*,%/-+'00

*)&.)))&,*+) ;8 6I>@8>B< F9D5>FG *)%)))')) 2%,..')))')) 2-/-.'))

*)&.)))&,+)) ;8 8>GD5H7=>B< G9FJ>79G ++%.))')) **%.)1'))*%1,+')) .**)%22+'))

;[VOZTWV3 ;[VOZTWV3 .))) ;>F9 89D5FHA9BH

HWZNU 9\XQVPTZ[YQ *%*),%+-.')) 10%//1'1, /*,%)+-'22 -2)%++)')* )'))

?6@5BHCB )*(*1(+)*/ ,3),3+)DA
RU*-*Y*+X

DNSQ * WR 0

Finance - Page 9



;M +)*.&+)*/

>895@ F9A5>B>B< D9F79BH3

577CIBH M95F HC 85H9 65@5B79 D7H

F9A5>B>B<

7IFF9BH D9F>C83 *+()*(+)*. HC *+(,*(+)*.

6I8<9H F9DCFH 6M ;IB7H>CB
HCKB C; GI@@>J5B$G >G@5B8

.) "

6I8<9H98 7IFF9BH

;[VOZTWV3 /))) DC@>79 89D5FHA9BH

9\XQVPTZ[YQ

*)&/)))&)*)) D8 G5@5F>9G # K5<9G -2.%)))')) +.,%./.'0+,-%1,+'** .*+-*%-,-'+1

*)&/)))&)+)) D8 DFH GC7>5@ G97IF>HM ,0%)))')) *2%/)1'**+%-2.'+0 .,*0%,2*'12

*)&/)))&)+*) D8 DFH =95@H= >BG 0,%)))')) ,0%2*-'0/.%/.1'11 .+,.%)1.'+-

*)&/)))&)++) D8 DFH DC@ C;; F9H>F9 //%)))')) ,-%*,+'22-%/2)'2) .+,*%1/0')*

*)&/)))&)+.) 7CIBHM G=9F>;; 89DIH>9G -)%)))')) +0%10.')))')) 0)*+%*+.'))

*)&/)))&),)) D8 <5G # C>@ ,.%)))')) +,%/-2'0)*%--+'** /1**%,.)',)

*)&/)))&),+) D8 8>9G9@ ;I9@ *%+))')) *%**-'-))')) 2,1.'/)

*)&/)))&)-)) D8 J9=>7@9 F9D5>F # A5>BH *+%)))')) ,%.12'.0,%,*.'+, ,)1%-*)'-,

*)&/)))&)/)) D8 GIDD@>9G # A5H9F>5@G *+%)))')) 2%*,0'.-/2,'1/ 0/+%1/+'-/

*)&/)))&)0)) D8 H9@9D=CB9 2%.))')) .%/0/')1*%)-/')* /),%1+,'2+

*)&/)))&)1)) 7C' K>89 F58>C GMGH9A */%0))')) -%/.2'+.)')) +1*+%)-)'0.

*)&/)))&)2)) D8 DCK9F # @><=HG -%+))')) +%+1*'10+.2'). .-*%2*1'*,

*)&/)))&*))) D8 >BGIF5B79 --%)))')) +)%./.'+++%*+0'*, -0+,%-,-'01

*)&/)))&*+)) D8 GMGH9A F9D5>F # A5>BH 1%)))')) /%,.*'/2+*')) 02*%/-1',*

*)&/)))&*+), IB>;CFAG # 7@CH=>B< 1%)))')) .%*1-'1)*%/*.'.0 /.+%1*.'+)

*)&/)))&*,)) D8 8I9G # 79FH>; ;99G .))')) -11'))*+')) 21*+'))

*)&/)))&*-)) D8 HF5>B>B< # G9A>B5FG /%)))')) .%.))',0)')) 2+-22'/,

*)&/)))&,))) D8 A>G79@@5B9CIG 9LD9BG9G *%)))')) *%)))')))')) *)))'))

*)&/)))&,*)+ D8&75D>H5@ @95G9 DF>B7>D5@ ..%,1+')) &0-)')-)')) &*./%*++')-

*)&/)))&,**) DFCD # 9EI>D 4 !.))) 0%)))')) 0%)))')))')) *)))'))

*)&/)))&,+)) D8 8>GD5H7=>B< G9FJ>79G ++%.))')) **%.)1'))*%1,+')) .**)%22+'))

;[VOZTWV3 ;[VOZTWV3 /))) DC@>79 89D5FHA9BH

HWZNU 9\XQVPTZ[YQ 2.,%21+')) /)%)-*'*+ -0,%2*1'20 -1)%)/,'), .)'))

?6@5BHCB )*(*1(+)*/ ,3),3+)DA
RU*-*Y*+X

DNSQ + WR 0

Finance - Page 10



;M +)*.&+)*/

>895@ F9A5>B>B< D9F79BH3

577CIBH M95F HC 85H9 65@5B79 D7H

F9A5>B>B<

7IFF9BH D9F>C83 *+()*(+)*. HC *+(,*(+)*.

6I8<9H F9DCFH 6M ;IB7H>CB
HCKB C; GI@@>J5B$G >G@5B8

.) "

6I8<9H98 7IFF9BH

;\WP[UXW3 0))) A5>BH9B5B79

9]YRWQU[\ZR

*)&0)))&)*)) A8 G5@5F>9G # K5<9G *0+%)))')) *)*%,*+'*-*)%-2.'/. .20)%/10'1/

*)&0)))&)+)) A8 DFH GC7>5@ G97IF>HM *,%)))')) 0%0,2'2,001'-1 /).%+/)')0

*)&0)))&)+*) A8 DFH =95@H= >BGIF5B79 +.%)))')) */%2.*'/)*%,-*'-) /11%)-1'-)

*)&0)))&)++) A8 DFH G' 7' F9H>F9A9BH *.%)))')) 0%1**',.*%)21'12 .+0%*11'/.

*)&0)))&),)) A8 J9=>7@9 <5G # C>@ *+%)))')) 1%+1.'....0',+ /2,%0*-'-.

*)&0)))&),*) A8 8>9G9@ ;I9@ ,%.))')) +%//2'2)2/',2 0/1,)'*)

*)&0)))&)-)) A8 J9=>7@9 F9D5>FG 0%.))')) 0%.))')))')) *)))'))

*)&0)))&)/)) A8 GIDD@>9G # A5H9F>5@G +)%)))')) **%-+-',0*%),+'1) .01%.0.'/,

*)&0)))&)0)) H9@9D=CB9 //)')) ,,)'))..')) .),,)'))

*)&0)))&)2)) A8 DCK9F # 9@97HF>7>HM -)%)))')) +*%*)0'.0,%*.,',- .,*1%12+'-,

*)&0)))&*))) A8 >BGIF5B79 *1%)))')) *)%2+.'-+.1,'-, /*0%)0-'.1

*)&0)))&*+)) A8 GMGH9AG F9D5>FG # A5>B *.%)))')) .%-*,'*1&*%),+'1) ,/2%.1/'1+

*)&0)))&*+), IB>;CFAG # 7@CH=>B< ,%)))')) *%1,)'-/1-2'-2 /**%*/2'.-

*)&0)))&,))) A8 A>G79@@5B9CIG 9LD9BG9G *%)))')) *%)))')))')) *)))'))

*)&0)))&,*)) A8 DFCD # 9EI>D DIF7=5G9 )')) &2%2.)')))')) )2%2.)'))

*)&0)))&,*)* A8&896H ;IB898 9EI>DA9BH +.%)))')) +.%)))')))')) *)))'))

*)&0)))&,*)+ A8&75D>H5@ @95G9 DF>B7>D5@ 0%2*0')) )'0*)')) )0%2*/'+2

*)&0)))&,-)) A8 <5F65<9 8>GDCG5@ 7CBHF *20%)))')) ***%1-)'+)+1%*1/'/) .01.%*.2'1)

*)&0)))&,.)) 75IG9K5M A5>BH9B5B79 +%)))')) ,+2',-*%/0)'// */*%/0)'//

*)&0)))&,/)) 7CBH5>B9F G9FJ>7>B< **%)))')) 2%1*.')))')) 12*%*1.'))

*)&0)))&,0)) 6957= D5H= A5>BH9B5B79 .)%)))')) -+%1+/'-)/%)))')) 1/0%*0,'/)

;\WP[UXW3 ;\WP[UXW3 0))) A5>BH9B5B79

HX[OV 9]YRWQU[\ZR /,1%.00')) .-%1//'/. +.-%-*,'11 ,1-%*/,'*+ /)'))

?6@5BHCB )*(*1(+)*/ ,3),3+)DA
SV*-*Z*+Y

DOTR , XS 0

Finance - Page 11



;M +)*.&+)*/

>895@ F9A5>B>B< D9F79BH3

577CIBH M95F HC 85H9 65@5B79 D7H

F9A5>B>B<

7IFF9BH D9F>C83 *+()*(+)*. HC *+(,*(+)*.

6I8<9H F9DCFH 6M ;IB7H>CB
HCKB C; GI@@>J5B$G >G@5B8

.) "

6I8<9H98 7IFF9BH

;\WP[UXW3 1))) F97F95H>CB

9]YRWQU[\ZR

*)&1)))&)2)) F8 DCK9F # @><=HG 0%.))')) +%0.,'+/2/.'1- ,0-%0-/'0-

*)&1)))&*))) F8 >BGIF5B79 -%,))')) *%2+-'1-,2.'1/ -.+%,0.'*/

*)&1)))&*,)) F8 F97F95H>CB 5F95 A5>BH *.%)))')) 1%)/*'.1)')) .-/%2,1'-+

*)&1)))&*-)) GD97>5@ 9J9BHG +.%)))')) *1%*1-'+1.))',2 0,/%1*.'0+

*)&1)))&,*)) F8 DFCD9FHM # 9EI>D DIF7= *+)%)))')) -/%01,'-.)')) ,20,%+*/'..

;\WP[UXW3 ;\WP[UXW3 1))) F97F95H>CB

HX[OV 9]YRWQU[\ZR *0*%1))')) *%1/+')2 2-%)2+'.2 00%0)0'-* )'))

?6@5BHCB )*(*1(+)*/ ,3),3+)DA
SV*-*Z*+Y

DOTR - XS 0

Finance - Page 12



;M +)*.&+)*/

>895@ F9A5>B>B< D9F79BH3

577CIBH M95F HC 85H9 65@5B79 D7H

F9A5>B>B<

7IFF9BH D9F>C83 *+()*(+)*. HC *+(,*(+)*.

6I8<9H F9DCFH 6M ;IB7H>CB
HCKB C; GI@@>J5B$G >G@5B8

.) "

6I8<9H98 7IFF9BH

;\WP[UXW3 2))) 58A>B

9]YRWQU[\ZR

*)&2)))&)*)) 58 G5@5F>9G # K5<9G -+*%)))')) +)2%-1/'20,*%,,-')) .)+**%.*,'),

*)&2)))&)+)) 58 DFH GC7>5@ G97IF>HM ,,%)))')) */%,)-'--+%+*0'2* -2*/%/2.'./

*)&2)))&)+*) 58 DFH =95@H= >BGIF5B79 -0%)))')) *-%,.-'+-.%.-0')) ,*,+%/-.'0/

*)&2)))&)++) 58 DFH G' 7' F9H>F9A9BH -0%)))')) ++%**0',1,%0/0'0- -0+-%11+'/+

*)&2)))&)/)) 58 C;;>79 GIDD@>9G +-%)))')) 2%--+'*2+%-//'1* ,2*-%..0'1*

*)&2)))&)/*) 58 HF5J9@ & F97CF89F 0))')) 0))')))')) *)))'))

*)&2)))&)/+) 58 GIDD@>9G & F97CF89F *%)))')) *%)))')))')) *)))'))

*)&2)))&)0)) 58 H9@9D=CB9 *0%)))')) 0%*-.',0+%+).',/ -+2%1.-'/,

*)&2)))&)2)) 58 DCK9F # @><=HG 2%)))')) -%*10'.20/.'.. -0-%1*+'-*

*)&2)))&*))) 58 >BGIF5B79 //%)))')) +*%.20',)/%-,-'/+ ,,--%-)+'0)

*)&2)))&*+)) 58 GMGH9AG F9D5>F # A5>BH -)%)))')) .%)*0'*-&0)/'*- *,,-%21+'1/

*)&2)))&*,)) 58 8I9G # 79FH>; ;99G -%.))')) +%)/)'),)')) -/+%-,2'20

*)&2)))&*-)) 58 HF5>B>B< # G9A>B5FG /%)))')) *%21/'1.-1',) ,,-%)*,'*.

*)&2)))&*1)) 58 DFC;9GG>CB5@ G9FJ>79G 2)%)))')) 0,%*..'-2+%*+)'-/ 1**/%1--'.*

*)&2)))&*1-) D@5BB>B< 9LD9BG9 *%)))')) *%)))')))')) *)))'))

*)&2)))&*10) 7CIB7>@ 9LD9BG9G /%)))')) .%1-)'+,,.')) 20*.2'00

*)&2)))&*11) <9B9F5@ 58J9FH>G>B< 9LD9BG9G *)%)))')) -%.1+'/1+%*.0'1) -/.%-*0',+

*)&2)))&*2)) 58 @9<5@ # 577CIBH>B< *))%)))')) +.%*,)'0-*)%)--')2 +.0-%1/2'+/

*)&2)))&*2*) 577F9H98 @5B8 & @5KGI>H 9LD9BG9G0)%)))')) &*)%*1-'/+)')) &*.1)%*1-'/+

*)&2)))&*2+) 577F9H98 @5B8 A5B5<9A9BH )')) &*%/)1'-2)')) )*%/)1'-2

*)&2)))&,))) 58 A>G79@@5B9CIG 9LD9BG9G +)%)))')) .%11,'02.%..-')* +2*-%**/'+*

*)&2)))&,*). 75D>H5@ DFC?97H )')) &1.+%/*1'***2,%-),'*/ )1.+%/*1'**

*)&2)))&,**) DFCD # 9EI>D 4 !.))) 0%)))')) &-%*,1'.,,%/-.'.1 &.2**%*,1'.,

*)&2)))&,*+) 6I>@8>B< F9D5FG # A5>BH' )')) )'))&-*)')) ))'))

*)&2)))&,*,) HCKB =5@@ F9@C75H>CB 9LD9BG9G.)%)))')) +/%*.2'/,*%,)-'1+ .++,%1-)',0

*)&2)))&-))) J>7H>AG F><=HG ;IB8 1%)))')) 1%)))')))')) *)))'))

*)&2)))&.))) K5H9F 6CB8 F9D5MA9BH +))%)))')) *)%*,0'+.)')) .*12%1/+'0.

*)&2)))&/))) +)*- <C 6CB8 896H G9FJ>79 -+1%1))')) ,2*%)1)')))')) 2*,0%0+)'))

*)&2)))&2))) ;IB8 65@5B79 F9D@9B>G=A9BH 1)%.-/')) 1)%.-/')))')) *)))'))

;\WP[UXW3 ;\WP[UXW3 2))) 58A>B

HX[OV 9]YRWQU[\ZR *%010%.-/')) +0*%2,/')0 *%0)2%*1)'-- 01%,/.'./ )'))

?6@5BHCB )*(*1(+)*/ ,3),3+)DA
SV*-*Z*+Y

DOTR . XS 0

Finance - Page 13



;M +)*.&+)*/

>895@ F9A5>B>B< D9F79BH3

577CIBH M95F HC 85H9 65@5B79 D7H

F9A5>B>B<

7IFF9BH D9F>C83 *+()*(+)*. HC *+(,*(+)*.

6I8<9H F9DCFH 6M ;IB7H>CB
HCKB C; GI@@>J5B$G >G@5B8

.) "

6I8<9H98 7IFF9BH

;\WP[UXW3 2.)) 6I>@8>B<

9]YRWQU[\ZR

*)&2.))&)*)) 68 G5@5F>9G # K5<9G +)+%)))')) *)*%,-,'0+*-%1,1'-) .)*))%/./'+1

*)&2.))&)+)) 68 DFH GC7>5@ G97IF>HM */%)))')) 1%.0,'),*%)12'.2 .-0%-+/'20

*)&2.))&)+*) 68 DFH =95@H= >BGIF5B79 +.%)))')) *-%*/-',/*%1).'2- .0*)%1,.'/-

*)&2.))&)++) 68 DFH G'7' F9H>F9A9BH +.%)))')) *,%)/.'//*%1)*'2) .+**%2,-',-

*)&2.))&),)) 68 <5G # C>@ +%/))')) +%,,2'/1)')) 2)+/)',+

*)&2.))&)/)) 68 C;;>79 GIDD@>9G ,%)))')) *%++1'*2*%/,+')) -**%00*'1*

*)&2.))&)/,) 68 GIDD@>9G 6@8< >BGD97H +%)))')) +%)))')))')) *)))'))

*)&2.))&)0)) 68 H9@9D=CB9 -%)))')) +%/0*'**+1.'*. /0*%,+1'12

*)&2.))&)2)) 68 DCK9F # @><=HG *%)))')) 0+2'/)-*'1* 0,+0)'-)

*)&2.))&*))) 68 >BGIF5B79 *%)))')) /02',).,'-. /1,+)'0)

*)&2.))&*+)) 68 GMGH9AG F9D5>FG # A5>BH ,%)))')) 0*+'))+%+11')) +-+%+11'))

*)&2.))&*,)) 68 8I9G # 79FH>; ;99G +%)))')) *%0+)'))*-)')) 1/+1)'))

*)&2.))&*-)) 68 HF5>B>B< # G9A>B5FG ,%)))')) +%1*)'))0)')) 2-*2)'))

*)&2.))&*1+) 6N5 9LD9BG9G +%)))')) 0*.'..*+,'/) ,/*%+1-'-.

*)&2.))&*1,) 8F6 9LD9BG9G .%)))')) *%/2.',10.1'2+ ,-,%,)-'/+

*)&2.))&*1.) HF99 7CAA>GG>CB *%.))')) *%-1+'.))')) 22*0'.)

*)&2.))&+.)) HF>AA>B< # DFIB>B< 9LD' 2%)))')) /%-))'))+%/))')) 0*+%/))'))

*)&2.))&,))) 68 A>G79@@5B9CIG )')) &1+'..)')) )1+'..

*)&2.))&,**) DFCD # 9EI>D 4 !.))) .%)))')) .%)))')))')) *)))'))

;\WP[UXW3 ;\WP[UXW3 2.)) 6I>@8>B<

HX[OV 9]YRWQU[\ZR ,*+%*))')) +0%.+1'0/ *--%1.+'-0 */0%+-0'., .-'))

?6@5BHCB )*(*1(+)*/ ,3),3+)DA
SV*-*Z*+Y

DOTR / XS 0

Finance - Page 14



;M ,*+/',*+0

>895@ F9A5>B>B< D9F79BH4

577CIBH M95F HC 85H9 65@5B79 D7H

F9A5>B>B<

7IFF9BH D9F>C84 +,)*+),*+/ HC +,)-+),*+/

6I8<9H F9DCFH 6M ;IB8

HCKB C; GI@@>J5B#G >G@5B8

/* !

6I8<9H98 7IFF9BH

;ZUO4 ++ G9K9F ;IB8

9[WPUOSYZXP

++'.***'*+** G5@5F>9G " K5<9G +1.&,2,(/. 3*&1-+(3,+,&1/+(+3 /,2-&//*(0,

++'.***'*,** DFH ' GC7>5@ G97IF>HM +-&--,(0, 1&.+.(*-222(*, /0/&3+2(/3

++'.***'*,+* DFH ' =95@H= >BGIF5B79 ,2&-02(0- +0&*./(.-,&0.0(-, /1+,&-,-(,*

++'.***'*,,* DFH ' G 7 F9H>F9A9BH +2&.+,(/- 3&-.,(.0+&.**(-* /+3&*1*(*1

++'.***'*-** <5G " C>@ ' J9=>7@9G 1&***(** .&231(11*(** 1*,&+*,(,-

++'.***'*-+* 8>9G9@ ;I9@ -&-**(** +&-1-(..*(** .,+&3,0(/0

++'.***'*-,* 8>9G9@ 9EI>DA9BH /&***(** .03(02,&-+2(,3 3.&/-*(-,

++'.***'*.** F9D5>FG ' J9=>7@9G /&***(** .&3.1(.3,-(2* 33/,(/+

++'.***'*0** GIDD@>9G " A5H9F>5@G +*&***(** ,&+01(1/+&1/2(-. ,,1&2-,(,/

++'.***'*0+* HCC@G ,&***(** +&23*(*/*(** 3/+*3(3/

++'.***'*0,* C;;>79 GIDD@>9G 2&1**(** 0&.-/(1*10(2* 1.,&,0.(-*

++'.***'*0-* @56 GIDD@>9G -&1**(** '+&//-(+.1-1(,/ '.,/&,/-(+.

++'.***'*1** H9@9D=CB9 /&0**(** ,&23-(/30/,(.* /,,&1*0(.+

++'.***'*3** DCK9F " 9@97HF>7>HM /2&***(** ,/&.33(,+/&.01(0* ..-,&/**(13

++'.***'+*** >BGIF5B79 +3&***(** 2&10.(,.+&,++(,. .0+*&,-/(10

++'.***'+,** GMGH9AG F9D5>FG " A5>BH 0*&***(** .+&.--(+*.&*30(00 03+2&/00(3*

++'.***'+,*+ G@I8<9 8>GDCG5@ /*&***(** ,3&*2-(*,-03(2/ /2,*&3+0(32

++'.***'+,*, <F>H 8>GDCG5@ +&.**(** 10-(,3,-.(,0 //0-0(1+

++'.***'+,*- IB>;CFAG " 7@CH=>B< +&/**(** 1//(-/-++(.- /*1..(0/

++'.***'+,+* 75D>H5@ >ADFCJ9A9BHG -1.&/**(** ,3*&3*/(0+.&.//(0/ 122-&/3.(-3

++'.***'+-** 8I9G " 79FH>;>75H>CB 2&***(** .&10/(/*-31(/* 0*-&,-.(/*

++'.***'+.** HF5>B>B< " G9A>B5FG /&***(** .&01+(/*,1/(., 3--,2(/*

++'.***'+3** DFC; G9FJ>79G ' 5I8>H /&***(** *(***(** */&***(**

++'.***',*** DFC;9GG>CB5@ ' 9B<>B99FB< +/&***(** 2&112(//+&+.1(*2 /30&,,+(./

++'.***'-*** A>G79@@5B9CIG +&+,.(2, 1*1(*3*(** 0-.+1(1-

++'.***'-+** DFCD " 9EI>DA9BH DIF7=5G9 -+&***(** ,1&+0+(+-*(** 22-&2-2(21

++'.***'-/** 58A>B C; G9K9F 6CB8 1,&***(** 00&1+.(,..&+**(/+ 3-/&,2/(10

++'.***'-/+* @95G9 D5MA9BHG ,3&/02(32 1&122(/1*(** ,0,+&12*(.+

++'.***'-0** K5GH9K5H9F 5B5@ ' @56 GJ7 3&***(** ,&1*0(01+&**/(** -*0&,3-(--

++'.***'-1** 7=9A>75@G ++&***(** ,&.30(,/,/0(-- ,-2&/*-(1/

++'.***'.*** GF; ' G9K9F @>B9 F9=56 *(** ',2.&*2/(31*(** *,2.&*2/(31

++'3***'*+** 58A>B G5@5F>9G .,&*3/(+* +2&+2.(3/-&1*.(1, .-,-&3+*(+/

++'3***'*,** DFH ' GC7>5@ G97IF>HM -&,,*(,2 +&.30(+/,**(*2 .0+&1,.(+-

++'3***'*,+* DFH ' =95@H= >BGIF5B79 -&11+(22 +&13-(+0-,3(13 .2+&312(1,

++'3***'*,,* DFH ' G 7 F9H>F9A9BH .&/22(-1 +&3.-(30.*3(1- .,,&0..(.+

++'3***'3*** F9J9BI9 CJ9F)$IB89F% 9LD9BG9G -/&***(** -/&***(***(** +***(**

;ZUO4 ;ZUO4 ++ G9K9F ;IB8

HVYNT 9[WPUOSYZXP +&+,.&.0/(1/ /+&,,/(/0 02*&*2.(*+ ...&-2+(1. *(**

?6@5BHCB *+)+2),*+0 ,4/34,2DA
QT+.+X+,W

DNRP + VQ -

Finance - Page 15



;M ,*+/',*+0

>895@ F9A5>B>B< D9F79BH4

577CIBH M95F HC 85H9 65@5B79 D7H

F9A5>B>B<

7IFF9BH D9F>C84 +,)*+),*+/ HC +,)-+),*+/

6I8<9H F9DCFH 6M ;IB8

HCKB C; GI@@>J5B#G >G@5B8

/* !

6I8<9H98 7IFF9BH

;ZUO4 +, K5H9F ;IB8

9[WPUOSYZXP

+,'.***'*+** G5@5F>9G 5B8 K5<9G +1.&,2,(/. 3+&3+,(+0+,&1+3(/, /-2,&-1*(-2

+,'.***'*,** DFH ' GC7>5@ G97IF>HM +-&--,(0, 1&/*.(*-22/(22 /0/&2,2(/3

+,'.***'*,+* DFH ' =95@H= >BGIF5B79 ,2&-02(0- +0&*./(.-,&0.0(-, /1+,&-,-(,*

+,'.***'*,,* DFH ' G 7 F9H>F9A9BH +2&.+,(/- 3&.1,(32+&-30(2* /+2&3-3(//

+,'.***'*-** <5G " C>@ ' J9=>7@9G 1&***(** .&0.3(,3,.2(./ 00,&-/*(1+

+,'.***'*-+* 8>9G9@ ' J9=>7@9G -&-**(** -&-**(***(** +***(**

+,'.***'*-,* 8>9G9@ 9EI>D( F9D5>FG " A5>BH( ,&***(** '+/,(21,03(-/ '2,&+/,(21

+,'.***'*.** F9D5>FG ' J9=>7@9G /&***(** .&3+-(.3,-(2* 3220(/+

+,'.***'*0** GIDD@>9G " A5H9F>5@G +*&***(** ,&-*+(-.+&-.*(11 ,-1&032(00

+,'.***'*0+* HCC@G +&/**(** '++,(1**(** '2+&0+,(1*

+,'.***'*0,* C;;>79 GIDD@>9G 2&1**(** 0&+,.(/,,..(02 1*,&/1/(.2

+,'.***'*0-* @56 GIDD@>9G ,&,**(** +&**/(1-,0.(03 .0+&+3.(,1

+,'.***'*1** H9@9D=CB9 /&0**(** ,&23-(/00/,(.* /,,&1*0(..

+,'.***'*3** DCK9F " 9@97HF>7>HM -&/**(** +&100(31,22(2/ /*+&1--(*-

+,'.***'+*** >BGIF5B79 +1&***(** 2&*2.(*/33+(,1 .22&3+/(3/

+,'.***'+,** GMGH9AG F9D5>FG " A5>B( -2&***(** +3&+*3(3*/*(/* /*+2&23*(+*

+,'.***'+,*- IB>;CFAG " 7@CH=>B< +&/**(** +&**-(130-(** 01.30(,+

+,'.***'+,+* 75D>H5@ >ADFCJ9A9BHG +2,&/**(** +/1&-/,(1-,/0(-. 20,/&+.1(,1

+,'.***'+-** 8I9G " 79FH>;>75H>CB 3&***(** -&-22(/*1/1(/* -2/&0++(/*

+,'.***'+.** HF5>B>B< " G9A>B5FG .&/**(** -&.0,(3,-*3(** 11+&*-1(*2

+,'.***'+3** DFC;9GG>CB5@ G9F(' 5I8>H /&***(** *(***(** */&***(**

+,'.***',*** DFC;9GG>CB5@'9B<>B99F>B< -/&***(** ,0&103(*/+&+.1(*2 102&,-*(3/

+,'.***'-*** A>G79@@5B9CIG +&/0.(-/ +&+2*(0**(** 1/-2-(1/

+,'.***'-+** DFCD " 9EI>DA9BH DIF7=5G9 ++&***(** 1&0/3(/,*(** 1*-&-.*(.2

+,'.***'-/** HF5BG;9F HC <; ' 6CB8 DAH( +32&/**(** +32&/**(***(** +***(**

+,'.***'-/+* @95G9 D5MA9BHG ,3&/02(** 1&121(/2*(** ,0,+&12*(.,

+,'.***'-0** K5H9F 5B5@MG>G +&,**(** +&,**(***(** +***(**

+,'.***'-1** 7=9A>75@G 2&***(** /&02,(*2*(** 1+,&-+1(3,

+,'.***'-3** =,C D5MA9BH CD9F5H>CB +,-&***(** .2&1./(3,+2&*0/(3, .*1.&,/.(*2

+,'.***'.*** 7DK >ADFCJ9A9BHG 1-&***(** 1-&***(***(** +***(**

+,'3***'*+** 58A>B>GHF5H>CB G5@5F>9G .,&*3/(+* +2&+2.(3/-&1*.(03 .-,-&3+*(+/

+,'3***'*,** DFH'GC7>5@ G97IF>HM -&,,*(,2 +&.30(,*,**(*2 .0+&1,.(*2

+,'3***'*,+* DFH ' =95@H= >BGIF5B79 -&11+(22 +&13-(+2-,3(12 .2+&312(1*

+,'3***'*,,* DFH ' G7 F9H>F9A9BH .&/22(-1 +&3.-(21.*3(1, .,,&0..(/*

+,'3***'3*** F9J9BI9 CJ9F)$IB89F% 9LD9BG9G 0,&***(** 0,&***(***(** +***(**

;ZUO4 ;ZUO4 +, K5H9F ;IB8

HVYNT 9[WPUOSYZXP +&+-1&,*.(-* .1&,00(-3 --1&,-/(/- 133&302(11 *(**

?6@5BHCB *+)+2),*+0 ,4/34,2DA
QT+.+X+,W

DNRP , VQ -

Finance - Page 16



>QNRFSILG BLE 0NDHIPFDPQNBJ 1MOPO

7AFD;I " 3KJJFE 2E@BE>>HBE@ $ 6KHL>M F? 0H>; *#..)%('!

7>HH;<FE 1FEIKCJ;EJI# 4E<% ',#-&&%+&

856 1FHGFH;JBFE ',#&,.%-.

3BCC 1FEIJHK<JBFE '(#+(/%.*

1H>><A " 0IIF<B;J>I *&.#,-.%&&

?MPBJ 3LGILFFNILG " 0NDHIPFDPQNBJ 1MOPO *+.#.,&%))!

1MLOPNQDPIML " ;PHFN 1MOPO

3BCC 1FEIJHK<JBFE -/.#/)(%()

2;=B>I 1FEIJHK<JBFE 1F# 4E< '()#,&.%&&

1A;E=C>H 1FEIJH% 6>HLB<>I )#-&&%&&

6>;DFE 9ABJ>IB=> " 0IIF<B;J>I (#+&'%/.

?MPBJ 1MLOPNQDPIML 1MOPO /(.#-*(%('!

?;?08 ?;A9 5088 1;9>?=@1?6;9 <=;731? ! '#).-#,&(%+*

?;A9 5088 1;9>?=@1?6;9 <=;731?

2FDFKCFN )'# (&'+

4ILBLDF $ <BGF '-



6>HA 9KBJ>K>MDIH >HA =K>DFBK <BM$NJ 4PJBHLBL0 ').#./(%.'!

<BOBK =>HE 4PJBHLBL0 -'#&)*%(.

=K>DFBK 6B>LB '((#/-)%.*

2IHLNFM>HML (,#),'%&&

7DL@BFF>HBINL 4PJBHLBL0 *)#)*'%.'

*&(#,&)%-*!

=IOH 5>FF 4PJBHLBL $ ;BFI@>MDIH " 8JBK>MDIH

1L IC 3B@BG?BK )'# (&'+

Finance - Page 18



LAND USE AND NATURAL RESOURCES
COUNCIL MEETING

January 19, 2016

Chairman Rita Langley
Members Chauncey Clark and Pat O'Neil

All matters relating to the zoning and building ordinances and their implementation, and
natural resources including Town-owned land

Monthly Zoning Report Presented by Mr. Henderson
Monthly Boards and Commission Reports Attached

I. Matters for Action by Council

II. Matters for Discussion by Council

A. The Accreted Land Management Plan meeting is scheduled for January 25, 2016
from 5-7 p.m. at Sunrise Presbyterian Church.

III. New Matters Presented to Council

IV. Matters Pending Further Action by Council



1 
 

DECEMBER 2015 

LAND USE AND NATURAL RESOURCES COMMITTEE 
BOARD, COMMISSION & ZONING UPDATE  

 

 

From:  Building and Zoning Department 

Prepared For: Land Use and Natural Resources Committee 

Regarding: Board, Commission, & Zoning Update  

 

ZONING PROJECT UPDATE: 

 

 Nonconforming Dwellings: Field survey and digitization of all properties with second/multiple 

dwelling units. GIS data will be compared with Business License information to count rentals 

 Protected Land Tree Survey- Online GIS application  

 Public Parking Plan- Preparation of mapping for public parking scenarios 

 Program for Public Information (PPI)-FEMA Community Rating System: Under Planning 

Commission review 

 Beachfront Management Plan- Preliminary Draft Complete (Pending DHEC-OCRM review) 

 Historic District Design Guidelines- Under Design Review Board review- Study Group meeting 

to resume January 2016 

 Short-term Illegal Rental Enforcement-Ongoing 

 DNR Floodplain Management Ordinance updates- rewrite ongoing 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION: DECEMBER 9, 2015 

 

NO MEETING HELD 

 

BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS: DECEMBER 10, 2015  

 

NO MEETING HELD 

 

DESIGN REVIEW BOARD: DECEMBER 16, 2015 

 

C. HISTORIC DESIGNATION AND HISTORIC SPECIAL EXCEPTION 

1. Conceptual Approved-2668 Goldbug Avenue: Allen Porter, applicant, requests conceptual 

approval of historic designation in accordance with Z.O. §21-94, and conceptual approval for the 

RS District Historic Structure Special Exception in accordance with Z.O. §21-20 C. (2). (TMS# 

529-07-00-008) 

 

D. CERTIFICATES OF APPROPRIATENESS– NON-HISTORIC PROPERTIES 



2 
 

1. Approved-2714 Atlantic Avenue: Eddie Fava, applicant, requests final approval of a new home 

construction redesign, and requests modification from the zoning standard for the principal 

building foundation height. (TMS# 529-11-00-028) 

 

2. Approved-2251 Atlantic Avenue: Beau Clowney Architects, applicants, request conceptual 

approval of additions to a single-family home and relief from the zoning standard for principal 

building square footage, second floor side setback, and side setback relief. (TMS# 529-10-00-

054) 

3. Redesign recomended-1711 Atlantic Avenue: Michael Taliercio, applicant, requests final 

approval for a new home construction and modification from the zoning standard for principal 

building square footage and second story side setback. (TMS# 523-12-00-013) 

4. Denied-2720-B Goldbug Avenue: Paul Boehm, applicant, requests approval for accessory 

structure modifications at 2720-B Goldbug Avenue. (TMS# 529-07-00-002) 

 

TREE COMMISSION: DECEMBER 28, 2015  
 

NO MEETING HELD 

 



ADMINISTRATION
COUNCIL MEETING

January 19, 2016

Chairman Mark Howard
Members Sarah Church and Susan Middaugh

All matters relating to oversight of implementation of the following Town administrative
functions: personnel; licensing; Town Attorney; court; rules; solicitation for Boards and
Commissions; administrative infrastructure; communications and community outreach.

I. Matters for Action by Council

A. None

II. Matters for Discussion by Council

A. Discussion of possible modification to uniform terms of service for Board and
Commission seats

III. New Matters Presented to Council

A. Personnel
1. Personnel Report

IV. Matters Pending Further Action by Council

A. Archiving Old Records
A vendor has been retained to digitize and archive Town documents. Work
will be conducted in the near future.

B. Town Communications Plan
Staff is developing an RFP for a municipal website, anticipating release for bid
within a month. Audio/video technical requirements have been identified and
incorporated in the new Town Hall/Police Station project, with the goal of
improving public communications.



WATER AND SEWER AGENDA
COUNCIL MEETING

January 19, 2016

Committee Chair: Susan Middaugh
Committee Members: Mark Howard, Bachman Smith

Committee Charge: All matters relating to the Water and Sewer Department and Systems.

Monthly Report from Mr. Gress:

I. Matters for Action by Council

MOTION for Council to authorize Staff to proceed with an application to the South
Carolina State Revolving Fund for Phase II of the I&I Reduction Project for work in
Subsection #3 and CIP work in Subsections #5 and #6 estimated at $2.2 million.

II. Matters for Discussion by Council

1. Update on I&I Reduction Phase II Planning

III. New Matters Presented to Council

1. The next W&S Committee meeting is scheduled: Thursday, February 25, 8:30 AM

IV. Pending Items

1. FEMA Grant Review

2. Pre-Disaster Mitigation Grant for Submersible Pumps

3. Improvements to fencing at the Water Treatment Site



's Jg
a  

Mir / 
se.„ 

Town of Sullivan's Island 
Water & Sewer Department 

843-883-5748 
I ivansisland-sc.corn 

January 19, 2016 

Ms. Melanie Hall 
Compliance Officer 
Water Pollution Enforcement Section 
2600 Bull Street 
Columbia, SC 29201 

Dear Ms. Hall, 

The Discharge monitoring report for the period from December 1, 201.5 to 
December 31, 2015 is enclosed. Should you have any questions, please contact me at 
(843)-883-5748. 

Respectfully, 

Greg dress 
Water & Sewer Manager 
Town of Sullivan's Island 

Page 1 oil 



MONITORING PERIOD 
YEAR MO I DAY  

FROM  15 1 12 1 01  

 

YEAR I MO I DAY 

TO 15 1 12 1 31 

    

SC0020052 

 

001 1 
PERMIT NUMBER 

 

DISCHARGE NUMBER 

PERMITTEE NAME/ADDRESS; 

NAME: 	SULLIVAN'S ISLAND TOWN OF 
ADDRESS: P.O. BOX 427 

SULLIVAN'S ISLAND, SC 29482 

FACILITY: SULLIVAN'S ISLAND VVVVTF 

LOCATION: AT 2051 GULL DRIVE 

NATIONAL POLLUTANT DISCHARGE ELIMINATION SYSTEM (NPDES) 

DISCHARGE MONITORING REPORT (DMR) 

MINOR 

19 TR 	FINAL LIMITS 

DMR VALID: 08/01/2013-07/3112018 
NOTE: Read instructions before completing this form. 

PARAMETER 
QUANTITY OR LOADING QUALITY OR CONCENTRATION NO. 

EX 

FREQUENCY 

OF 

ANALYSIS 

SAMPLE 
TYPE 

AVERAGE MAXIMUM UNITS MINIMUM AVERAGE MAXIMUM UNITS 

00300 	LAB ID: 10005 SAMPLE 
MEASUREMENT 

*********** *********** ****** 

**** 

6.5 *********** *********** 

MG/L 

0 01/01 GR 

Dissolved Oxygen 	MLOC-1 PERMIT REQUIREMENT ********** ************ 4.0 
INST MIN 

********** ********** 
01/01 GR 

00310 	LAB ID: 10122 SAMPLE 15 28 

LBS/ 
DAY 

MEASUREMENT  
*********** 3 6 

MG/L 

0 24 
BOD - 5 DAY PO DEGREES C) 

MLOC=1 
PERMIT 

REQUIREMENT 
143 
MO AVG 

215 
WKLY AVG 

*********** 30 
MO AVG 

45 
WKLY AVG 01/07 24 

00530 	LAB ID: 10005 SAMPLE 
MEASUREMENT 22 29 

LBS/ 
DAY 

*********** 5 6 

MG/L 

0 01/07 24 
Total Suspended Solids (TSS) 
MLOC=1 

PERMIT 
REQUIREMENT 

143 
MO AVG 

215 
WKLY AVG 

*********** 30  
MO AVG 

45 
WKLY AVG 01/07 24 

00610 	LAB 1D: 10122 SAMPLE 
MEASUREMENT NA NA *********** NA NA MG/L NA 01/07 24 

Ammonia-Nitrogen Total as N 
MLOC=1 NNYYYYYYYYNN 

PERMIT 
REQUIREMENT 

9 
MO AVG 

14 
WKLY AVG 

LBS/ 
DAY 

*********** 1.8  
MO AVG 

2.7 
WKLY AVG 01/07 24 

00610 	LAB ID: 10122 SAMPLE 
MEASUREMENT 0.7 1.0 

LBS/ 
DAY 

*********** 0.1 0.2 

MG/L 

0 NA NA 

Ammonia-Nitrogen Total as N 
MLOC=1 YYNNNNNNNNYY 

PERMIT 
REQUIREMENT 

16 
MO AVG 

24 
WKLY AVG 

*********** 3.3 
MO AVG 

4.95 
WKLY AVG 01/07 24 

50050 	LAB ID: 10005 SAMPLE 
MEASUREMENT 0.58 0.59 

MGD 

*********** *********** *********** ***** 

***** 

0  
01/01 CN 

Flow in Conduit or Thru 
Treatment Plant 	MLOC=1 

PERMIT 
REQUIREMENT 

REPORT 
MO AVG 

REPORT 
WKLY AVG 

*********** ********** ********** 
01/01 CN 

50060 	LAB ID: 10005 SAMPLE 
MEASUREMENT 

*********** *********** ****** 

**** 

*********** 0.00 0.00 

MG/L 

0 01/01 GR 
Total Residual Chlorine 
MLOC=1 

PERMIT 
REQUIREMENT 

*********** *********** *********** 0.035 
MO AVG 

0,061 
DAILY MX 01/07 GR 

NAME I TITLE PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER 
I certify under penalty ollawthatthls dctornentand all aeachrnisntervere prepared under my direction or 
suneMsInn In accordance with a system designed 

m 	
to assure that qualified personnel properly gather and 

evaluate 	e intormagonsubmitted. Based on my Inquiry bthe person or personewho manage 010 system or 
those persons directly responsible for gathering the intormation. the lraormaticn oubm Itled is, to the best of my 
knowledge and belief. true, accurate, and com p43te. I am aware that there are significant penalties for 
subm t-ting foEse iontormation, including the possibility of fine and imptlsonmert lor knowing vicdadons_ 

, /..) 
.,--n—t2---C...> „.„,..,--Q--- 

TELEPHONE DATE 
Patrick O'Neil 

Mayor 843-883-3198 16 1 01 1 19 SIGN 	RE OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE 
OFFICER OR AUTHORIZED AGENT TYPED OR PRINTED AJea Code 	NUMBER YEAR 1 MO I DAY 

ION OF ANY VIOLATIONS 	 (Reference all attachments here) 

Permit limits are based on an average design flow of 0.57 MGD. MLOC 0, P=See permit conditions. "Conditional Monitoring Not Required" under specific circumstances. 24-Hr. reporting required when 
FC daily max. exceeds 43/100 ml, per part II.L.5.a of the permit 

PAGE 1 OF 2 



PERMITTEE NAME/ADDRESS: 

NAME: 	SULLIVAN'S ISLAND TOWN OF 
ADDRESS: P.O. BOX 427 

NATIONAL POLLUTANT DISCHARGE 

DISCHARGE MONITORING 
ELIMINATION SYSTEM (NPDES) 

REPORT (DMR) 
SC0020052 001 	1 

SULLIVAN'S ISLAND, SC 29482 PERMIT NUMBER DISCHARGE NUMBER MINOR 

FACILITY: 	SULLIVAN'S ISLAND WWTF 19 	TR 	FINAL LIMITS MONITORING PERIOD 
YEAR I 	MO 	DAY YEAR 	MO 	I 	DAY 

LOCATION: AT 2051 GULL DRIVE 	 FROM 151 	12 	101 TO 15 	1 	12 	I 	31 DMR 	VALID: 08/01/2013-07131/2018 

NOTE: Read instructions before completing this form. 

PARAMETER QUANTITY OR LOADING QUALITY OR CONCENTRATION NO. 

EX 

FREQUENCY 

OF 

ANALYSIS 

SAMPLE 
TYPE 

AVERAGE MAXIMUM UNITS MINIMUM AVERAGE MAXIMUM UNITS 

51040 	LAB ID: 10122 SAMPLE 
MEASUREMENT 

*********** *********** ****** 

**** 

*********** 11 15 

# PER 
100ML 

0 01/07 GR 
E. COLI (MPN/100ML) 
MLOC=O 

PERMIT 
REQUIREMENT *********** *********** *********** 35  

30DAVGEO 
501 
DAILY MX 01/07 GR 

51040 	LAB ID: 10122 SAMPLE 
MEASUREMENT 

*********** *********** ****** 

**** 

*********** NA NA 

# PER 
100ML 

NA NA NA 
E. COLI (MPN/100ML) 
MLOC=P 

PERMIT 
REQUIREMENT *********** *********** *********** 35  

30DAVGEO 
800 
DAILY MX 01/07 GR 

74055 	LAB ID: 10005 SAMPLE 
MEASUREMENT 

*********** *********** ****** *********** 6.0 8.0 
# PER 
100ML 

0 01/07 GR 
Fecal Coliform General 
MLOC= 1 REQUIREMENT 

PERMIT **** *********** *********** *********** REPORT 
30 DAVGEO 

REPORT 
DAILY MX 01/07 GR 

81010 	LAB ID: 10005 SAMPLE 
MEASUREMENT 

*********** ********* ****** 

**** 

*********** 98% *********** 

PER- 
CENT 

0 01/30 CA 
BOD, 5-DAY Percent Removal 
MLOC=K 

PERMIT 
REQUIREMENT *********** ********* *********** 85 

MO AV MN 
********** 

01/30 CA 

81011 	LAB ID: 10005 SAMPLE 
MEASUREMENT 

*********** ********* ****** 

**** 

********** 93% *********** 

PER- 
CENT 

0 01/30 CA 
Solids, Suspended Percent 
Removal 	MLOC=K 

PERMIT 
REQUIREMENT *********** ********* *********** 85  

MO AV MN 
********** 

01/30 CA 
SAMPLE 

MEASUREMENT 
PERMIT 

REQUIREMENT 
SAMPLE 

MEASUREMENT 
PERMIT 

REQUIREMENT 
NAME / TITLE PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER TELEPHONE 

I certify under penalty of law that this document and an attachments were prepared under my dIrecton or 
supervision in accordance with a system designed to assure that qualified personnel properly gather and 
evaluate the Information submitted. Based on my Inquiry of the person or persons who manage the system, or 
those persons directly responsible for gathering the information, the Information submitted is, to the best of m 
knowledge and ballot tme, accurate, and complete.' am aware that there are algnilicard penalties tor 
submIttingtalse lonfonnation. including the possibility of fine and Imprisonmertfor knowing violations.  

_ 

_..A.  j2,,., 	 ) 

DATE 
Patrick O'Neil 

Mayor 843-883-3198 16 1 01 119 SIG 	TURE OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE 
OFFICER OR AUTHORIZED AGENT TYPED OR PRINTED Area code 	I NUMBER YEAR I MO I DAY 

TION OF ANY VIOLATIONS 	 (Reference all attachments here) 

Permit limits are based on an average design flow of 0.57 MGD. MLOC 0, P=See permit conditions. "Conditional Monitoring Not Required" under specific circumstances. 24-Hr. reporting required when 
FC daily max. exceeds 43/100 ml, per part If L.5.a of the permit 

PAGE 2 OF 2 



PERMITTEE NAME/ADDRESS: {Include Facility Nnrne/Locarion if Offeront) 

NAME: 	SULLIVAN'S ISLAND TOWN OF 
ADDRESS: 	P.O. BOX 427 

NATIONAL POLLUTANT DISCHARGE 

DISCHARGE MONITORING 
ELIMINATION SYSTEM (NPDESJ 

REPORT (DMR) 

SC0020052 001 	2 
SULLIVAN'S ISLAND, SC 29482 PERMIT NUMBER DISCHARGE NUMBER MINOR 

FACILITY: 	SULLIVAN'S ISLAND WWTF 19 	TR 	 INTERIM LIMITS MONITORING PERIOD 
YEAR I 	MO 	I DAY YEAR 	I 	MO 	I 	DAY 

LOCATION: AT 2051 GULL DRIVE 	 FROM 151 	12 	101 TO 15 	1 	12 	1 	31 DMR 	VALID: 08/01/2013-06/30/2018 
NOTE: Read instructions before completing this form. 

PARAMETER 
QUANTITY OR LOADING QUALITY OR CONCENTRATION NO. 

EX 

FREQUENCY 

OF 

ANALYSIS TYPE 
 

SAMPLE 

AVERAGE MAXIMUM UNITS MINIMUM AVERAGE MAXIMUM UNITS 

00400 	LAB ID: 10005 
SAMPLE 

MEASUREMENT 
*********** *********** ****** 

**** 

7.2 
*********** 7.9 

SU 

0 
01/01 GR 

PH Standard Units 

MLOC=1 
PERMIT 

REQUIREMENT 
*********** *********** 6.0 

MINIMUM 
********** 8.5 

MAXIMUM 01/01 GR 

SAMPLE 
MEASUREMENT 

PERMIT 
REQUIREMENT 

SAMPLE 
MEASUREMENT 

PERMIT 
REQUIREMENT 

SAMPLE 
MEASUREMENT 

PERMIT 
REQUIREMENT 

SAMPLE 
MEASUREMENT 

PERMIT 
REQUIREMENT 

SAMPLE 
MEASUREMENT 

PERMIT 
REQUIREMENT 

SAMPLE 
MEASUREMENT 

PERMIT 
REQUIREMENT 

NAME / TITLE PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER TELEPHONE 
I certify under penalty al lawthat this t7 cument and all attachment] were prepared under mydirection or 
supartim 	 paned on In accordancewitha system designed to assure thel 	aed personnel properly gather and 
evaluate the informatonsubmilleri t3a ed on my Inquiry ot the person or petecnewho manage Me system or 
those persons directly responsible tor gotnerIng the InlorrnatIon, the Information Bandied is, to the best at my 
knowledge and belief. true, accurate, and complete I am aware Mat there are slgralcant wattles for 
...ming  false tent:citation, including the passIbtlityol tine and Imprisonmel for knowing violators .  

\,, 	

,... ...euL.")._ DATE 

Patrick O'Neil 

Mayor 843-883-3198 16 1 01 1 19 SI 	TURE OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE 

OFFICER OR AUTHORIZED AGENT TYPED OR PRINTED Area Cade NUMBER YEAR I MO 1 DAY 

COMMEN 
	

(Reference aft attachments here) 

PAGE 1 OF 1 



Town of Sullivan’s Island
Water & Sewer Department

Manager Greg Gress
843-883-5748

Monthly Water Report
For

December 2015
Data as of 12/29/15

FLOW: Distributed 6.388 MG this month, with a daily average flow of .199 MG and a Daily Max of

.304 MG

SALES: 4.498 MG billed (all water) with a daily average of .145 MG. (5.252 MG billed in December

last year with a daily average of 0.169 MG).

RED WATER: No operational problems.

DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM: No operational problems. Relocated water lines in 5 locations plus service

lines due to new Storm Water Project along Ion. This has delayed WLP a couple weeks.

WATER LINE PROJECT: Crews will resume work along Atlantic from Station 16 to Station 17 and

then along Station 16 from Poe to Atlantic the 1st week of January. We have been communicating with

W. Walsh Company to reline 2900 feet on Middle St from Station 12 to Star of The West beginning in

February 2016. Anticipating a 60 day timeline. There will need to be 9 excavation points to do this

work.



s=7 

,ti&C.123 

,-.5.311,ei 
Row GF*1 

Er-11"'"M  FP,Ennee 119 

01.-119 

GPM 

•,,c4fiir;frktl.2 C 

C2  

Fry&C,11 

---' 
L=1 

••,,,110. 9 it 
oRzn: r3,,,d`z 

Town of Sullivan’s Island
Water & Sewer Department

Manager Greg Gress
843-883-5748

WATER PLANT: No operational problems.

WORK ORDERS: 2 check for leaks; 0 frozen pipes; 4 monthly rereads; 1 misc. customer complaint; 1

replace customer shut off; 1 turn on; 12 turn off; 41 locates; 1 install irrigation meter; 0 remove

irrigation meter; 2 irrigation quote; 1 read meter; 1 meter box repairs; 0 disconnect delinquent acct; 0

reconnect delinquent acct; 0 pulled meter for demo; 0 reinstall meter from demo; 0 backflow

inspection

CHEMICALS: Used 29 gallons of phosphate.

OTHER: Committee meeting scheduled for 1/7/2016 at 8:30 am in Water and Sewer Department

conference room.



Town of Sullivan’s Island
Water & Sewer Department

Manager Greg Gress
843-883-5748

Monthly Sewer Report
For

December 2015

COLLECTION SYSTEM: No operational problems

SEWER LINE PROJECT: Continue condition assessment of sewer mains and laterals along the path

of water line replacement to determine repair or replacement needs. This work will be done after

waterlines are replaced. Continue to work on I&I Reduction Project Phase II scope of work. Phase II

will begin with some capital rehab and replacements from Phase I grouting project.

LIFT STATIONS: Replaced two starters in LS#1 and rebuild 1 motor for LS#4. All will need to be

rebuilt this year.

FLOW: Processed 18.197 Million Gallons this month, with a daily average of 0.587 MG and a

maximum weekly average of .591 MG. Rainfall total was 2.09inches.

SALES: 3.920 MG billed this month with a daily average of .126 MG. (4.386 MG billed in December

last year with a daily average of 0.141 MG).

HEADWORKS: Grit separator Air lift pump compressor is down. Using portable compressor

temporarily. Duplex compressor will need to be rebuilt or replaced.

OXIDATION DITCH: No change since last report.



Town of Sullivan’s Island
Water & Sewer Department

Manager Greg Gress
843-883-5748

CLARIFIER: Scheduling these to be sand blasted and painted this spring. Must be done during low

flows.

OUTFALL: No operational problems.

BIOSOLIDS: 10 cu yd. dry to landfill. 0 gallons liquid sludge hauled.

CHEMICALS: 450 lbs. of chlorine and 231 lbs. of sulfur dioxide used for the month.

COMPUTER SYSTEMS: No operational problems.

WORK ORDERS: 41 locates; 1 pool filling permit inspection; 1 sewer connection inspection (first

time); 0 sewer connection inspection (sewer replacement); 0 sewer reconnect inspection (reconnect

from a demo); 0 sewer disconnect inspection (disconnect for a demo); 0 grease trap inspection; 0

install new tap; 0 repair cleanout; 0 back up; 1 sewer adjustment app.

OTHER: Committee meeting scheduled for 1/7/2016 at 8:30 am in Water and Sewer Department

conference room.



Town of Sullivan's Island 
Water & Sewer Department 

843-883-5748 
wiresti(ii'su I I i vansi s I a ncl-sc, corn 

Janu • ry 4, 2016 

Ms. endi Smith 
Bur 	u of Water 
S.0 HEC 
260 Bull Street 
Col mbia, SC 29201 

Dea Ms. Smith, 
Enclosed please accept the Disinfection report for the monitoring period from 

Dec mber 1, 2015 to December 31, 2015. 

Sho Id you have any questions please contact me at (843) 883-5748. 

Res iectfully, 

Gre  i  ress 
Wa' r & Sewer Manager 
TON 	of Sullivan's Island 

Page 1 of 1 



D 	H 	E 	C 	Surface Water System Monthly Operation Report 

- 	-: --- 	-- 

riiminW rusli-ri?$- 

- 	i 	 Distribution System Disinfectant Residual 
Bureau of Water 

P.m )414 It 

System Name: Sullivan's Island System Number: 1010003 	 For (Month/Yr): 
Lab Cert ID #: 10005 Lab # for lab conducting HPC analyses: 

Day 

No. of Sites 
Disinfect. 

Residual was 
Measured 

No. of Sites Disinfect. 
Residual NOT 

Measured, 
but HPC Measured 

No. of Sites where 
Disinfect. Residual 

NOT Detected & HPC 
NOT Measured 

No. of Sites where 
Disinfectant Residual 

was NOT Detected and 
HPC 

> 500/ml 

No. of Sites 
Disinfect. Residual 

NOT Measured 
and HPC > 500/m1 

Average 
Disinfectant 

Residual 
(mg/L) 

1 
2 / 2-G }  

3 / C.' . 0 7 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 / i. r`] 
10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 / G./`1 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 / C • 1,2 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 / / 5 
31 

Total 6 Avg. Resid. 

a b c d e L/! 
Compliance with Distribution 
V=(c+d+e)/(+ 
Prepared by: 	,,,U 

System Disinfectant Residual Criteria 
b ) x 10p = ( 0+ (7' +C- ) / ( 6-, A- C)) x 100 = For Previous Month: V = 6) 

/ cf-JA-1"') 	 Date: 	/— 1-/ --- /6. 	(signature) 

DHEC, 1972 (Rev. 06/2001), Page 10 of 15 



Jan 

Town of Sullivan's Island 
Water & Sewer Department 

843-883-5748 
gsressullivansisland-sc.corn  

ry 4, 2016 

Win y Smith 
Env onrnental Compliance Coordinator 
Watt r Enforcement Section 
2601 Bull Street 
Col mbia, SC 29201 

Dea Ms. Smith, 

Enclosed please accept the Bacteriological Analysis report for the monitoring 
peri id from December 1, 2015 to December 31, 2015. 

Sho Id you have any questions please contact (843) 883-5748. 

Res ectfully, 

Gre 	ress 
Wa' r & Sewer Manager 
To% n of Sullivan's Island 

Page 1 of 1 



E 

acteriological Analysis Sample Summary (Part 1) 
R {INS orr. 

SultchCarolina Department uf fleulth 
I le 	I  

PART 1 CAN BE USED IN ONE (1) OF TWO (2) WAYS 

1. If the system has had no Total Coliform (TC) Positives samples for a compliance cycle or, 
2. If the system wants to report those samples that were initial TC Absent and use Part 2 for the TC Present and all repeats. 

System Number S C 1 0 1 0 0 0 3 

12/01/2015 

6 

M 

10005001 Lab State ID # 
Note: This can be used for any system that 
does not have a total colifon-n positive. 

DESCRIPTION 

SC followed by 7 digit system number 

First day of month for monthly 

First day of quarter if quarterly 

First day of year if annual 

# of Initial Total Coliform Negative 

M=Month; Q=Quarter; Y=Year 

Number assigned by Lab Certification 

DOES SYSTEM ADD DISINFECTION? YES R1NO 

AVERAGE DISINFECTION RESIDUAL O 

AND/OR 

OFIEC 1974 (07/2004) 



PUBLIC SAFETY
COUNCIL MEETING

January 19, 2016

Chairman Chauncey Clark
Members Pat O'Neil and Sarah Church

All matters relating to the Police and Fire Departments, and other matters regarding
emergency preparedness.

Monthly Report by Chiefs Howard and Stith

I. Matters for Action by Council

II. Matters for Discussion by Council

A. Managed Parking — Staff update on managed parking plan

III. New Matters Presented to Council

IV. Matters Pending Further Action By Council



Beach Calls 
2 

Contacts 
2 

January 2016 Sullivan's Island Fire Department 

Type of Incident Total Incidents 

Structure Fire 
Alarm Malfunction 1 
Unintentional Alarm 
Emergency Medical 9 
Water Rescue 2 
Citizen Assist 3 
Hazardous Condition 
Automobile Fire 
Trash, Rubbish, or Grass Fire 1 
Smoke Scare 
Other Misc. 1 

Total Responses 17 

Incidents Where Aid was Given 
Mutual Aid 
Automatic Aid 

Fire Department Activities: 

Fire Department performed 9 prefire plan updates 

Tours given to 35 adults and 108 children. 

Training: 

Volunteer drill held on 12/9 and 12/16. 



SULLIVAN’S ISLAND POLICE DEPARTMENT
MONTHLY REPORT SUMMARY

DECEMBER 2015

12/01 – Officers responded to a residential alarm in which they found an unsecure door,
the house was checked with negative signs of a break-in; a key holder was contacted and
advised.

12/04 – Officers responded to a report of an auto accident, on arrival it was learned that
the victim was walking down the road and a subject in a vehicle stuck the victim’s elbow,
the vehicle stopped, there was an exchange of words and then the vehicle left the scene.
An investigation was performed and the driver was located and charged.

12/04 – A complainant reported that someone had vandalized a construction site.

12/04 – After properly tagging a vehicle left on the side of the road and observing for
movement for the required time the vehicle was towed as an abandoned vehicle.

12/09 – A vehicle was stopped for a traffic violation, during the stop it was learned that
the vehicle registration had been suspended because of property taxes not being paid. The
driver was cited for the violation and the vehicle was towed.

12/11 – A complainant reported that she was missing money from an envelope in her
purse.

12/11 – A complainant reported that his daughter had been assaulted on the beach by her
boyfriend but on the arrival of officers the daughter and boyfriend had left the residence
and were unable to be located.

12/12 – A complainant reported that he believed there had been a theft of his water due to
the large increase in is water bill, there were no leaks and there were no signs of theft.

12/13 – Officers responded to the beach in reference to a dog fight, on arrival the officer
spoke to the dog owners who agreed that their dogs had been in a fight but both declined
to pursue charges.

12/19 – A complainant reported that it appeared that someone had thrown eggs at his
residence striking the sidewalk.

12/23 – A complainant reported that someone entered his unsecured vehicle and removed
his wallet.

12/25 – A complainant reported that someone had thrown a can of stain into their pool
area causing the paint to spill on the stone, tile and furniture.

12/31 – A complainant reported that someone has been opening accounts with defendant
businesses using the complainant identification.



SLED Inhouse Code / Description Last Year This Year

Comparison Offense Report for 01/01/2015 to 12/31/201501/01/2016 Page: 1

ALCOHOL CRIMES
90D 90D DRIVING UNDER THE INFLUENCE         3
90E 90E DRUNKENNESS         2
90G 90G LIQUOR LAW VIOLATIONS         3         1

6 3Total for Category:

ARSON/SUSPICIOUS FIRE
200 200 ARSON
978 978 SUSPICIOUS FIRE         1

1 0Total for Category:

ASSAULTS
100 100 KIDNAPING / ABDUCTION
11A 11A RAPE - FORCIBLE         1         1
11B 11B SODOMY - FORCIBLE
11C 11C SEXUAL ASSAULT WITH AN OBJECT         1
11D 11D FONDLING - FORCIBLE
13A 13A ASSAULT - AGGRAVATED
13A CDA CDV - AGG ASSAULT
13B 13B ASSAULT - SIMPLE         5         3
13B CDV CDV - SIMPLE ASSAULT         6
13C 13C ASSAULT - INTIMIDATION
36A 36A INCEST
36B 36B RAPE - STATUTORY
36C 36C INDECENT EXPOSURE (SEXUAL NATURE)         3
753 753 TELEPHONE CALLS - OBSCENE, HARASSING         2

7 15Total for Category:

DRUG CRIMES
35A 35A DRUG / NARCOTIC VIOLATIONS        10         6
35B 35B DRUG EQUIPMENT VIOLATIONS         8         4

18 10Total for Category:

HOMICIDE CRIMES
09A 09A MANSLAUGHTER
09B 09B NEGLIGENT MANSLAUGHTER
09C 09C JUSTIFIABLE HOMICIDE

0 0Total for Category:

INFORMATION ONLY REPORTS - NRP
NRP 90T ALL TRAFFIC EXCEPT DUI & FAILURE TO STOP        15        15
NRP NRP INCIDENT NOT REPORTED        47        81

62 96Total for Category:

LARCENY CRIMES
120 120 ROBBERY         1
210 210 EXTORTION / BLACKMAIL
220 220 BURGLARY / BREAKING & ENTERING         3         5
23A 23A POCKET-PICKING
23B 23B PURSE-SNATCHING
23C 23C SHOPLIFTING         1
23D 23D THEFT FROM BUILDING         1         1
23E 23E THEFT FROM COIN OPERATED MACHINE
23F 23F THEFT FROM MOTOR VEHICLE         7        14
23G 23G THEFT OF MOTOR VEHICLE PARTS OR ACCESSORIES         1
23H 23H LARCENY - ALL OTHER        12        15



SLED Inhouse Code / Description Last Year This Year

Comparison Offense Report for 01/01/2015 to 12/31/201501/01/2016 Page: 2

LARCENY CRIMES
240 240 MOTOR VEHICLE THEFT
250 250 COUNTERFEITING / FORGERY
26A 26A FRAUD / CONFIDENCE GAME / BREACH OF TRUST         2         1
26B 26B TELLER MACHINE FRAUD
26C 26C IMPERSONATION         2         5
26D 26D WELFARE FRAUD
26E 26E WIRE FRAUD         1
270 270 EMBEZZLEMENT
280 280 STOLEN PROPERTY OFFENSES
756 756 USING MOTOR VEHICLE WITHOUT CONSENT
90A 90A BAD CHECKS

29 43Total for Category:

OTHER CRIMES
370 370 PORNOGRAPHY / OBSCENE MATERIAL
520 520 WEAPON LAW VIOLATIONS         1
64A 64A HUMAN TRAFFICKING / COMMERCIAL SEX ACTS
64B 64B HUMAN TRAFFICKING / INVOLUNTARY SERVITUDE
90B 90B CURFEW / LOITERING / VAGRANCY VIOLATIONS
90C 90C DISORDERLY CONDUCT        10         4
90F 90F FAMILY OFFENSES, NONVIOLENT         4         2
90H 90H PEEPING TOM
90I 90I RUNAWAY
90J 90J TRESPASS OF REAL PROPERTY         7         3
90K 90K INCORRIGIBLE
90L 90L TRUANCY
90N 90N RESISTING ARREST         4
90P 90P CONTRIBUTING TO DELINQUENCY OF A MINOR
90Z 90Z ALL OTHER OFFENSES         7        10
979 979 MISSING PERSONS         1         2
980 980 SUICIDES         2         4
992 992 PROWLER

36 25Total for Category:

OTHER MONEY CRIMES
39A 39A BETTING / WAGERING
39B 39B ASSISTING GAMBLING
39C 39C GAMBLING EQUIPMENT VIOLATIONS
39D 39D SPORTS TAMPERING
510 510 BRIBERY

0 0Total for Category:

PROSTITUTION
40A 40A PROSTITUTION
40B 40B ASSISTING OR PROMOTING PROSTITUTION
40C 40C PURCHASING PROSTITUTION

0 0Total for Category:

VANDALISM/DAMAGE
290 290 VANDALISM OF PROPERTY        12         9

12 9Total for Category:

171 201Total for Reporting Period:



Monthly Report for December 2015

OFFENSES REPORTED01/01/2016 Page 1

Inhouse Code
Monthly

Total
Year

To Date
Monthly

Total
Year

To Date

Current Previous

11A RAPE - FORCIBLE        0        1        0        1
11C SEXUAL ASSAULT WITH AN OBJECT        0        0        0        1
120 ROBBERY        0        0        0        1
13B ASSAULT - SIMPLE        0        3        0        5
220 BURGLARY / BREAKING & ENTERING        0        5        0        3
23C SHOPLIFTING        1        1        0        0
23D THEFT FROM BUILDING        1        1        0        1
23F THEFT FROM MOTOR VEHICLE        1       14        0        7
23G THEFT OF MOTOR VEHICLE PARTS OR ACCESSORIES        0        0        0        1
23H LARCENY - ALL OTHER        0       15        0       12
26A FRAUD / CONFIDENCE GAME / BREACH OF TRUST        0        1        0        2
26C IMPERSONATION        1        5        0        2
26E WIRE FRAUD        0        1        0        0
290 VANDALISM OF PROPERTY        3        9        0       12
35A DRUG / NARCOTIC VIOLATIONS        0        6        0       10
35B DRUG EQUIPMENT VIOLATIONS        0        4        0        8
36C INDECENT EXPOSURE (SEXUAL NATURE)        0        3        0        0
520 WEAPON LAW VIOLATIONS        0        0        0        1
753 TELEPHONE CALLS - OBSCENE, HARASSING        0        2        0        0
90C DISORDERLY CONDUCT        0        4        0       10
90D DRIVING UNDER THE INFLUENCE        0        0        0        3
90E DRUNKENNESS        0        2        0        0
90F FAMILY OFFENSES, NONVIOLENT        0        2        0        4
90G LIQUOR LAW VIOLATIONS        0        1        0        3
90J TRESPASS OF REAL PROPERTY        0        3        0        7
90N RESISTING ARREST        0        0        0        4
90T ALL TRAFFIC EXCEPT DUI & FAILURE TO STOP        2       15        0       15
90Z ALL OTHER OFFENSES        0       10        0        7
978 SUSPICIOUS FIRE        0        0        0        1
979 MISSING PERSONS        0        2        0        1
980 SUICIDES        0        4        0        2
CDV CDV - SIMPLE ASSAULT        1        6        0        0
NRP INCIDENT NOT REPORTED        5       81        1       47

15 201 1 171TOTALS



NRP Breakdown

Case Number Date Description

For Period 12/2015

ALARM CALL/UNSECURED RESIDENCE15-00210 12/01/2015
TOWED VEHICLE15-00214 12/07/2015
AGENCY ASSIST15-00218 12/11/2015
WATER / SEWER USE ISSUE / POSSIBLE WATER THEFT15-00219 12/12/2015
DOG FIGHT / DOG BITE15-00221 12/13/2015



Monthly Report for January 2015

VICTIMS REPORTED01/01/2016 Page 1

Inhouse Code
Monthly

Total
Year

To Date
Monthly

Total
Year

To Date

Current Previous

23F Theft from Motor Vehicle        1        1        1        1
23H Larceny - All Other        2        2        0        0
290 Vandalism Of Property        0        0        1        1
35A Drug / Narcotic Violations        1        1        2        2
35B Drug Equipment Violations        1        1        1        1
90C Disorderly Conduct        0        0        1        1
90N Resisting Arrest        0        0        1        1
90T ALL TRAFFIC EXCEPT DUI & FAILURE TO STOP        0        0        1        1
90Z All Other Offenses        2        2        1        1
CDV CDV - SIMPLE ASSAULT        2        2        0        0
NRP Incident Not Reported        1        1        3        3

10 10 12 12TOTALS



Type

Monthly Report for December 2015

01/01/2016 Page 1PERSONS ARRESTED

Total Individuals Arrested for Month:   1 With 1 Counts

Total Individuals Arrested for Year:   32 With 46 Counts

Total Arrest Codes for Month Total Arrest Codes for Year To Date

The Total Arrests Codes will probably be more than the Total Individuals Arrested.
Each Individual can have as many as Three (3) Arrest Codes Associated.

1 - Adults

2 - Juveniles

3 - Narc - Adults

4 - Narc - Juveniles

Male Female

Male Female

Male Female

Male Female

Male Female

Male Female

Male Female

Male Female

     1      0

     0      0

     0      0

     0      0

    22     12

     0      0

     6      2

     2      2

Male Female     1      0 Male Female    30     16TOTALS



Monthly Report for December 2015

01/01/2016 Page 1PERSONS ARRESTED

0 3

1 29

Juveniles

This Month

Adults

This Year To Date



Race/Sex Breakdown for Arrested
For Period 12/2015

       0

       0

       1

       0

       0

       0

Male

Female

White

Black

Other

Male

Female

Male

Female

For Period So Far This Year

       3

       2

      19

       8

       0

       0



Type

Monthly Report for December 2015

01/01/2016 Page 1PROPERTY VALUES

Total for Month Total for Year

Burglary Stolen         0.00      1142.00

Larceny Stolen       766.00    229833.00

Criminal Damage      3360.00     64435.00

MVT Stolen         0.00         0.00

Other Stolen       100.00       100.00

Burglary Recovered         0.00         0.00

Larceny Recovered         0.00     15900.00

MVT Recovered         0.00         0.00

Other Recovered         0.00        66.00

Total Stolen       866.00    231075.00

Total Recovered         0.00     15966.00

Total Seized         0.00       534.00



RECREATION
COUNCIL MEETING

January 19, 2016

Chairwoman Sarah Church
Members Rita Langley and Susan Middaugh

All matters relating to the creation, expansion or improvement of facilities and programs
in the area of parks and recreation; and community wellness programs.

I. Matters for Action by Council

IL Matters for Discussion by Council

1. Drainage and Erosion Study for the Mound – Update on development of
scope of work being prepared by staff

2. Island Club — Update on request for estimates on basic repairs and some
improvements.

3. Battery Gadsden Cultural Center – update on improvements to facility

III. New Matters Presented to Council

1. Farmer’s Market – Vendors Business Licenses- Consideration for a reduced fee
for use only at the Farmer’s Market.

2. Trees in the Park – Planting of trees between the Water & Sewage plant and the
adjacent neighbors to provide visual and sound buffer.

IV. Matters Pending Further Action by Council

1. Bamboo on the Mound – consideration of the trimming back of bamboo and
other overgrowth on the mound- on hold until further knowledge is gained
regarding drainage issues.



PUBLIC FACILITIES
COUNCIL MEETING

January 19, 2016

Chairman Bachman Smith IV
Members Chauncey Clark and Mark Howard

All matters relating to construction, maintenance and improvements of streets, beach paths and
Town-owned buildings; sanitation services including trash and garbage; storm water
management; and energy and resource conservation programs.

Monthly Construction Report Presented by Mr. Robinson (if needed).

Town Hall construction update by C. Clark.

I. Matters pending discussion in Committee
(may include items currently for discussion by Council)

A.Station 17 Street Water Plant surrounding fence – From W&S budget next year. Should

the fence be 6’ or 8’ (coordinate with W&S)

B. Planning for public facilities and historic structure aesthetic improvements to grounds

and the need for a Budget line item (next year)

C. Review of Space Needs Reports from all departments (11/2/2015)

D.Non-functioning Sta. 18 pump station and related storm water issues (12/7/2015)

E. Sta. 26 boat landing resurfacing/maintenance (12/15/2015)

F. Restrict vehicle access to the Dump (12/15/2015)

G.

II. Matters for Action by Council

A. None

III. Matters for Discussion by Council

A. None

B.

C.



IV. New Matters Presented to Council

A. Clean-up of view corridor adjacent at Star of the West (1/4/2016)

B.

V. Matters Pending Further Action by Council
(other than mention these will not be discussed until additional info is received)

A. Landscape and signage enhancements to Island entrance (12/7/2015)

B. Art wall/display area in new Town Hall (11/21/2015)

I. Recently Resolved (these items will remain for one full month after resolution)

A. Customized Brick sales for installation around the flag at the new Town Hall with
funds raised to help offset cost of this hardscape (12/15/2015)

B.



INSURANCE SERVICES OFFICE, INC.
1993 Meadowood Lane, Longs, SC 29568 , (843) 399-5127, ktodd@iso.com

SULLIVANS ISLAND, SC
NFIP # 455418

December 15, 2015

Dear CRS Coordinator:

This to acknowledge receipt of your 2015 Community Rating System (CRS) Recertification for
your community. The completed and signed AW-214 and requested enclosures have been
reviewed and everything appears to be in order. This completes the recertification process for
2015 and your community remains in good standing in the CRS for the next year.

Thank your for your continuing effort and participation in the CRS Program and your
cooperation in completing the annual CRS Recertification form. Please do not hesitate to contact
me when I can be of future assistance.

Yours very truly,

Mandy Todd

Mandy Todd, AICP, CFM
ISO/CRS Specialist

C: Sherry Harper – ISO, Crestview, FL
William Trakimas – ISO, Indianapolis, IN



BUILDING/ BUSINESS LICENSE REPORT 

December 2015 

Fiscal Previous 

Dec 
2015 

Nov 
2015 

Dec 
2014 

Year to 
date 

Year to 
date 

TOTAL PERMITS ISSUED 	34 37 28 208 156 

TOTAL C.O. ISSUED 1 2 2 12 9 

NEW HOME PERMITS 1 0 1 10 5 

COST OF CONSTRUCTION 3,146,472 709,340 1,406,541 14,968,661 5,242,787 

PERMIT FEES COLLECTED 33,847.42 16,993.83 14,891.01 219,448.65 122,172.92 
Budget amount 250,000.00 

87.00% 
245,000.00 

48% 
DEMOLITIONS/MOVING 2 0 1 4 4 

INSPECTIONS 73 45 37 398 304 

OTHER SITE VISITS 49 68 41 318 185 

BUSINESS LICENSE 14,881.22 20468,48 20,397.00 167,572.98 120,492.88 


	January 19, 2016 Agenda
	Action Item #1- December 15, 2015 Minutes
	Action Item #2- Ordinance 2015-11 
	Administrator's Report
	Deceased Islanders 2015
	November 9, 2015 Planning Commission Minutes
	Finance Committee Agenda
	December Financial Report
	Town Hall Construction Project
	LUNR Committee Agenda
	December Board, Commission & Zoning Update
	Administration Committee Agenda
	Water & Sewer Committee Agenda
	December Discharge Monitoring Report
	December Water Report
	December Sewer Report
	December Disinfection Report
	December Bacteriological Analysis Report
	Public Safety Committee Agenda
	Fire Department Report
	Police Department Summary Report
	Police Department Report
	Recreation Committee Agenda
	Public Facilities Committee Agenda
	Recertification Verification 
	December Building Report

